Merton Council
Cabinet Agenda

Membership
Councillors:

Stephen Alambritis (Chair)
Mark Allison

Caroline Cooper-Marbiah
Nick Draper

Andrew Judge

Edith Macauley MBE

Maxi Martin

Judy Saunders

Martin Whelton

Date: Monday 20 October 2014
Time: 7.15 pm

Venue: Committee rooms B, C & D - Merton Civic Centre, London Road,
Morden SM4 5DX

This is a public meeting and attendance by the public is encouraged and welcomed.
For more information about the agenda please contact
democratic.services@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3361.

All Press contacts: press@merton.gov.uk, 020 8545 3181




Cabinet Agenda
20 October 2014

1 Apologies for absence

2 Declarations of pecuniary interest

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 1-4

4 Financial Monitoring August (2014/15) 5-60

5 Business Plan 2015-19 To follow

Note on declarations of interest

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at
the meeting. If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during
the whole of the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter. If
members consider they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give
rise to a perception of bias, they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of
the item. For further advice please speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance.



Agenda ltem 3

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

CABINET
15 SEPTEMBER 2014

(19.15 - 19.28)

PRESENT Councillor Stephen Alambritis (in the Chair),
Councillor Mark Allison, Councillor Caroline Cooper-Marbiah,
Councillor Nick Draper, Councillor Andrew Judge,
Councillor Edith Macauley, Councillor Maxi Martin,
Councillor Judy Saunders and Councillor Martin Whelton

Ged Curran (Chief Executive), Paul Evans (Assistant Director of
Corporate Governance), Kate Herbert (Head of Policy, Strategy
and Partnerships), Caroline Holland (Director of Corporate
Services), Chris Lee (Director of Environment and
Regeneration), Yvette Stanley (Director of Children, Schools and
Families), Simon Williams (Director of Community and Housing),
and Chris Pedlow (Senior Democratic Services Officer).

ALSO PRESENT Councillors Oonagh Moulton and Peter Southgate.

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

No apologies were received.

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda ltem 2)

No pecuniary declarations were made.

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)

The Minutes of the Meeting of the Cabinet held on the 30 June 2014 were approved
as a correct record.

4 STRATEGIC PARTNER FUNDING 2015-18 (Agenda ltem 4)

The Cabinet Member for Community Safety, Engagement and Equalities presented
the report, which provided a background to the types of services that the Strategic
Partner Funding funds. It also made reference that the current funding, which was set
for a three year period, would be ended in March 2015, and that the current year’s
allocated for 2014-15 had been set at £780,000. It also details the proposed new
criteria for future Strategic Partner Funding, as showed within Appendices (Il and IlI),
along with the consultation process and feedback from stakeholders on the proposed
criteria as detailed within Appendix (1).

Pagell



RESOLVED
That Cabinet

A). notes the amendments made to the proposed criteria for the Strategic Partner
Funding stream as a result of consultation; and

B). approves the proposals for Strategic Partner Funding 2015-18, including the
criteria, total funding pot and process for allocating this funding.

5 ALLOCATION OF S.106 MONIES FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING (Agenda
Item 5)

The Cabinet Member for Environmental Sustainability and Regeneration presented
the report, which sought authorisation of the £115,000 funding towards the delivery of
affordable housing units as part of the development at 191-193 Western Road,
Mitcham. Members were informed that since the publication of report further
negotiation had occurred between the developer and the Council and as a result it
had been possible to increase the level of affordable housing units on the site. As a
result of that the requested funding had increased to £115,000 from the originally
stated £80,000.

Members noted that the development had received planning permission at 21 August
Planning Applications Committee which included the provision of affordable housing
units within the development.

RESOLVED:

That Cabinet approves the allocation of £115,000, S.106 funding towards the delivery
of new affordable housing in the borough, specifically at the development at 191-193
Western Road, Mitcham.

6 FINANCIAL MONITORING JUNE 2014-15 (Agenda ltem 6)

The Leader announced that he would be taking agenda items 6. Financial Monitoring
June 2014-15 and 7. Financial Monitoring July 2014-15 as one item.

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented the both reports which provided the
regular monthly financial monitoring update for June and July. The Cabinet Member
highlighted that the reports where identifying that there was projected overspend of
£3.5millions for the year. That figure would clearly be changing over the next 8
months and there was now time, as we go through the next budget setting round to
try to tackle the expected overspend.

It was noted that the June monitoring report had, as part of the Quarter 1 report, been
scrutinised by the Financial Monitoring task Group.

Page 2



RESOLVED

That Cabinet:

A). notes the financial reporting data relating to revenue budgetary control, showing a
forecast overspend at year end of £2.69million, 1.65% of the net budget, and
consider the need for urgent action by managers to reduce this.

B). notes the financial reporting data for capital

C). approves the following Virements from Adult Social Care IFRS Reserves- £609k and
Public Health Grant IFRS Reserves £1.6m as detailed in Appendix 11

D). approves a Virement from the Corporate Contingency to fund the cost of the
recent local elections of £165k.

7 FINANCIAL MONITORING JULY 2014-15 (Agenda ltem 7)

RESOLVED:

That Cabinet:

A). notes the financial reporting data relating to revenue budgetary control, showing a
forecast net overspend at year end of £3.67million, 2.3% of the net budget. This is an

increase of £980k from last month.

B). notes the adjustments contained in Appendix 5b and approves the following
adjustments

£

St Mary’s expansion — Locally Controlled Voluntary Aided 355,830

Provision (LCVAP) Contribution

Room and Space Management — New Scheme 66,500

Pollution — New Scheme 60,000

Outdoor Gyms — New Scheme 60,000

Living Wandle Ravensbury Park — New Scheme 76,200

Severe Weather Road Maintenance — New Scheme 283,100

Total 901,630

C). approves the virement of £190,900 from the CSF Social Work Improvement Fund
reserve to fund projects supporting early intervention and assessment.

D). approves the supplementary virement of up to £319,000 for 2014/15 from
earmarked reserves to fund the continued EDS.

E). approves the virement of £24,540 from E&R to C&H to fund the administration

officer post within the recently transferred Environmental Health Housing (EHH)
team.

Page 3



F). approves the budget realignment within Waste Services, as part of the ongoing
internal review of budgets to accurately reflect the total cost and income for each
service operated by the section.

G). approves a virement to transfer the management of the Professional
Development Centre (Chaucer Centre) from CSF to the Facilities team within
Corporate Services.

Gross expenditure budget £244,180
Gross income budget £251,940
Net budget £7,760

P&age 4



Agenda ltem 4

Cabinet
Date: 20 October 2014

Subject: Financial Report 2014/15 — August 2014

Lead officer: Paul Dale
Lead member: Mark Allison

Recommendations:

A. That Cabinet note the financial reporting data relating to revenue budgetary control, showing a
forecast net overspend at year end of £5.28 million, 3.2% of the net budget, an increase of £1.6m
from last month.

B. Note that the Public Health underspend of £778k and the Local Welfare support underspend of
£240k is to be carried forward and therefore a nil variance is reported this month.

C. That Cabinet approve the virement of £170k from reserves to Communications to recruit 2 posts
for sales and marketing to provide strategic advice, commercial working and drive forward the
project to increase income in the borough. The funding is required for 2 years.

D. That Cabinet note the adjustments in Appendix 5b and approve the following adjustments:

£
2014/15
Central Road - TfL 360,000
Coombe Lane - TfL 90,000
2015/16
Mitcham Major Schemes * 557,000
191-3 Western Roqd 1 22888
CCTV (Match Funding) ’
2016/17
885,000

Mitcham Major Schemes *
CCTV (Match Funding) 300,000

* ringfenced funding from Transport for London

E. That Cabinet note the following schemes have been removed from the Capital Programme in

Appendix 5b: £

Haydons Road - TfL 374,000
B521 Morden Park 29,780
B626a-c Cottenham Park and Holland Gardens 28,000
London Rd Lower Green to Cricket - TfL 76,000
High Path Area (Option 1 and 3) 6,000
Total 523,780

Page 5



PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

21

This is the regular financial monitoring report for 2014/15 presented to CMT in line with the
financial reporting timetable. It is based on expenditure and income as at 315 August 2014.

This financial monitoring report provides:-

The latest budgetary control information on revenue expenditure and income, forecasting a
year end overspend of £5.28m (last month £3.67m);

As the Public Health and Local Welfare Support underspend is to be carried forward, the real
change in forecast estimate from last month is £592k.

An update on the capital programme and detailed monitoring information;

An update on Corporate Items in the budget 2014/15;

2014/15 FORECAST OUTTURN BASED UPON LATEST AVAILABLE DATA

Executive summary - As at August the forecast is expected to be a net £5.3m overspend
compared to the current budget.

Summary Position as at

31st Auqust 2014

Department

3A.Corporate Services 12,772 12,280 (492) (686) (732)
3B.Children, Schools and Families 48,296 51,479 3,183 2,662 556
3C.Community and Housing 61,991 63,697 1,706 1,696 (1,122)
3D.Public Health 0 (0) (0) (784) 0
3E.Environment & Regeneration 24,116 25,991 1,875 1,762 (576)
Overheads 0 0 0 0 55
NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 147,175 153,447 6,272 4,649 (1,820)

3E.Corporate Items
Impact of Capital on revenue

budget 14,103 14,103 0 0 0
Central budgets 333 (658) (991) (977) 2,429
Levies 931 931 0 0 0
TOTAL CORPORATE

PROVISIONS 15,367 14,376 (991) (977) 2,429
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 162,542 | 167,823 5,281 3,672 610
FUNDING

Revenue Support Grant (39,738) (39,738) 0 0 (249)
Business Rates (33,253) (33,253) 0 0 0
Other Grants (9,972) | (10,053) (81) (81) (359)
Council Tax and Collection Fund (79,578) (79,578) 0 0 0

A detailed table is provided as Appendix 1.

Page 6



It should be noted that C&H and CSF have netted down the forecast overspend by £915k of one-off
Public Health money. This reduces the overall overspend from £6.2m to £5.28m reported.

Chart 1 below shows the forecast year end variance for departmental expenditure with a comparison
against both 2013/14 and 2012/13.

Service Expenditure - Forecast Year End Variance

8,000
6,000
e '
il Seruioe Pepanditine.
1314
1213

g °£'§0 %

-4,000

Chart 2 shows the forecast year end variance for corporate provisions with a comparison against
both 2013/14 and 2012/13.

Page 7



1,000

-1,000
3,000
o
000
Y

-4,000

-5,000

-6,000

Corporate Provisions - Year End Forecast
Variance

—— Y
Fomeaet

—— Y

—_— Ay

Expenditure

Employees

Premises Related Expenditure
Transport Related Expenditure
Supplies and Services

Third Party Payments

Transfer Payments

Support Services

Depreciation and Impairment Losses

Corporate Provisions

£000

92,795
9,569
13,258
167,105
84,864
108,347
32,421
15,227

15,367

£000
94,967
9,284
14,491
167,475
89,427
104,009
32,421
15,226

14,376

£000
2,172
(285)
1,233
370
4,564
(4,338)
(1)

(1)

(991)

£000
1,709
(284)
1,014
(47)
4,367
(288)

(1)

(1)

(977)

£000
275
(891)

1,933
(2,106)
6,442
1,501
(0)

2,429

Income

Government Grants (263,313) | (259,314) 3,999 (44) (6,425)
Other Grants, Reimbursements and

Contribs (23,559) (24,413) (854) (707) (2,361)
Customer and Client Receipts (56,333) (56,603) (271) 182 (1,141)
Interest (44) (19) 25 25 25
Recharges (33,020) (33,019) 1 0 (1,446)
Balances (141) (485) (343) (1,278) 2,352
GROSS INCOME (376,410) | (373,853) 2,557 (1,820) (8,994)

Page 8




1. DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY OF CURRENT POSITION

Corporate Services Department

Business Improvement 3,177 3,181 4 37 -32
Infrastructure &

Transactions 9,226 9,156 -70 -46 -130
Resources 7,403 7,394 -9 -76 -284
Human Resources 2,198 2,173 -25 12 -46
Corporate Governance 3,333 3,046 -287 -228 -185
Customer Services 2,305 2,200 -105 -385 -752
Corporate Items including 1,272 1,272 0 0 696
redundancy costs

Overview

At period 5 (August) the Corporate Services department is forecasting an underspend of
£492k. This is a reduction in the forecast underspend of £194k from last month. The main
reason for this movement is the decision to transfer the underspend on the local welfare
support scheme of £240k to reserves as there is no external funding from 2015/16 onwards.

Business Improvement — forecast overspend £4k

There is a forecast overspend of approx. £55k on support and maintenance contracts.
Contracts are being reviewed in line with the development of a procurement plan to identify
whether there is scope for reduction in these costs.

This overspend is partly being offset by an overachievement of street naming income.

The restructure of the systems and development team within the Business Improvement
division continues to make good progress. The employee forecast for the team is being
reported in line with budget under the assumption that any salary protection costs will be offset
by vacant posts for this financial year. As salary protection applies for 3 years this may cause
budget pressures on future years.

Human Resources — forecast underspend £25k

Page 9



As reported previously there is a forecast underachievement of schools SLA income of £25k
due to the pressure from external providers. There is also pressure in achieving the saving to
increase the CRB income target. The shortfall projected is £20k.

These overspends are offset by a forecast underspend on learning and development
expenditure. The training needs of the workforce should be reviewed by managers as part of
the six month appraisal process to ensure training needs are identified and commissioned
through the central learning and development team.

Corporate Governance — forecast underspend £287k

The Benefits Investigation team currently has 7.6 posts investigating both welfare and non
welfare benefits. From November 2014, the posts within this team will be transferred to the
DWP under the Single Fraud Investigation Service. An anti- fraud team of 3 posts will then be
set up within the Audit & Investigation service to cover corporate fraud investigations. The
budget for this service will therefore be under spent by approximately £98k in 2014/15. The
budget for 2015/16 will need to be reduced to reflect these changes, net of reduction in
Housing benefits admin grant.

The saving of a FOI/ complaints officer post will not be achieved in the current year due to a

very high demand on the service. An alternate saving has being identified from various non-
salary budgets within the division.

Customer Services — forecast underspend £105k

The Local Welfare Support discretionary scheme continues to underspend in 14/15. The
forecast underspend is £240k. This underspend will be transferred to the local welfare support
reserves as was the £315k underspend in 13/14. A paper will be presented to CMT in due
course with a proposal to increase the uptake of this scheme.. This is the main reason for the
reduction in the forecast underspend from last month.

The forecast underspend on vacant posts are approx. £115k.

The Corporate Communications sponsorship, advertising and filming income target remains an
on-going issue and budget pressure with a forecast overspend of £85k.

The Sutton shared bailiffs income target is also a pressure in 14/15 and expected to
underachieve. The forecast underachievement of income is £110k.

Management Action
Finance staff will continue to work closely with budget managers this year to continue to make
forecasting more robust.

Page 10



Children Schools and Families

Commissioning, Strategy and

Performance 7,067 8,296 1,229 1,054 449
Education 16,217 17,215 998 909 370
Social Care and Youth Inclusion 10,645 12,011 1,366 1,414 (268)
Public Health contribution 0 (415) (415) (415) 0
PFI 7,724 7,729 5 0 29
Redundancy costs 2,073 2,073 (24)

Overview

At the end of August Children Schools and Families is forecasting a net overspend of £3.183m on
local authority funded services. There are a considerable number of duties placed on the Local
Authority which have not been fully funded or not funded at all. These include remand costs, no

recourse to public funds (NRPF) and the new requirement to support care leavers. This will be

compounded by the Children and Families Act requirements from September 2014. This has been
netted down by one off Public Health money of £415k making the underlying overspend £3.598m,

(£3.377m last month) an increase of £221k.

Local Authority Funded Services

There are a number of volatile budgets, which require continuous and careful demand management.

Significant cost pressures and underspends identified to date are detailed below:

Fostering and residential placements (ART) 4,169 772 526
Supported lodgings/housing 627 335 346
Un-accompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) 346 142 143
Other small over and underspends 1,925 (20)

SEN Transport 2,816 695 640
No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 0 58 90
Children with disabilities team (CWD) staffing 505 218 133
Other small over and underspends 12,896

Social work staffing costs 2,581 721 736
No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 20 225 233
Supported lodgings/housing 0 133 138
Special guardianship orders (SGO) 200 258 258

Other small over and underspends

Page 11

7,844

29

49



Commissioning, Strateqy and Performance Division

¢ While the numbers of Looked After Children (LAC) are relatively stable, the complexity of a
significant proportion of cases is causing the net estimated overspend of £772k. This includes on-
going pressures in independent agency fostering of £142k, in-house fostering of £255k and
residential placement of £539k which is offset by underspends forecast in mother and baby
placements of £164k while secure accommodation costs including remands is expected to spend
to budget. The increase is due to a combination of new placements and movements to more
expensive placements due to assessed need.

e The budget for semi-independent and supported lodgings/housing placements is estimated to
overspend by £335k. This budget is used to finance placements for young people aged 16/17 who
require semi-independent provision and for Care Leavers through to independence or, in some
cases, through to the age of 21. There has been an increase in forecast expenditure since April
2014 due to increase in caseload as some young people have now reached 18 and funding for
their placement has transferred from the LAC placement into this budget. Because of their specific
needs, some young people have also needed to move placements and this has resulted in
increased expenditure on those placements.

e The UASC payments are expected to overspend by £142k this year due to an increase in the
number of claimants turning 18 which is when central government contribution towards these
cases ceases.

e There are various other small over and underspends predicted across the division netting to a
£20k underspend. These combine with the item described above to arrive at the total reported
divisional overspend forecast of £1.229m.

Education Division

e SEN and FE transport cost are expected to overspend by £695k due to the increased number of
service users and higher than anticipated charges from the service provider. This is due to more
children with challenging behaviour requiring individual transport with accompanying escorts as
well as the additional costs of providing cover for transport escorts who are off sick. Work
continues to ensure the most cost effective routing for individual young people. . This amount also
includes an additional £300k increase in SLA charges from E&R for core routes following a
formula allocation review.

e The No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) budgets are forecast to overspend in total by £283k for
the current financial year. These overspends are expected across education (£58k) and CSC
(£225k). This increase in cost is in response to case law regarding housing families with no
recourse to public funds (Zambrano & Clue cases).

e The CWD team is expected to overspend by £218k. As highlighted in the budget reports to
Cabinet and Council, additional capacity is being kept under regular reviewed funded as
necessary from the corporate contingency. This amount equates to two additional social workers.
On top of the additional staff, the team also has to cover vacancies with agency staff.

e There are various other small over and underspends predicted across the division netting to a

£27k overspend. These combine with the item described above to arrive at the total reported
divisional overspend forecast of £998k.

Page 12



Children’s Social Care and Youth Inclusion Division

e The green and purple central social work teams and MASH team staffing budgets are expected to
overspend by £721k. The teams are in a similar position to the CWD team with regards to six
additional social workers kept under review and funded as necessary from corporate contingency.
On top of the additional staff, the teams are also required to cover vacancies with agency staff
due to difficulty in recruiting permanent members of staff. This cost could fluctuate during the
course of the year depending on our ability to recruit permanent members of staff to our
vacancies.

e The NRPF budgets are forecast to overspend by £225k in CSC for the current financial year. See
second bullet point under education division for details.

e The budget for semi-independent and supported lodgings/housing placements in the 14+ team is
expected to overspend by £133k. This is due to a combination of one-off overspend as a result of
CareFirst packages that was not accrued for in the previous financial year, and on-going support
cost increasing.

e Special guardianship orders (SGO) and residence orders are estimated to overspend by £258k
during the current financial year due to an increase in caseload as well as increased fees
resulting from case law.

There are various other small over and underspends predicted across the division netting to a
£29k overspend. These combine with the item described above to arrive at the total reported
divisional overspend forecast of £1.366m.

Dedicated Schools Grant

DSG funded services are expected to overspend by an estimated £1.361m (£1.278m reported last
month) in 2014/15. These budgets are not within the council’'s general fund and any over or
underspends cannot be offset against the local authority funded budgets. Any movement at year-end
will be added to the DSG reserve and applied after consultation with Schools Forum. Variances
between individual subjectives have been shown in the overall departmental subjective analyses.

The main reason for the expected overspend relates to post 16 SEN provision. The responsibility of
these payments transferred to Authorities in 2013/14. The cost of Further Education (FE) colleges
and Independent Specialist Providers (ISP) are expected to be £953k over budget as the DfE has not
provided sufficient funding.

Management Action

Of the £500k public health underspend allocated to CSF, £415k will be used to offset Early Years
costs which enabled us to use existing general fund money to offset overspends on LAC placements.

Transport: a review of the costs of the provision involves all departments is taking place as part of our
Transformation work. Issues regarding the costing methodology are being resolved and departments
are working closely together to ensure the buses and taxis are used most cost efficiently. E&R are
working hard to reduce staff sickness levels, which remain higher than the council average, to reduce
the costs of agency cover.

Page 13



As previously mentioned, there are a considerable number of duties placed on the Local Authority
which have not been fully funded or not funded at all. The table below highlights the estimated
overspends relating to these duties:

Supported lodgings/housing 627 335 346
Un-accompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) 346 142 143
No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 20 283 323
Special guardianship orders (SGO) & residence orders 200 258 258

Fosterini 0 15 0

Young people aged between 18 and 21 now have the right to stay in their foster placements beyond
18 including whilst attending university. This means their fostering placement has to remain open to
them and the in-house foster carer or IFA will have to continue to be paid.

Young People on remand are classed as being LAC and also have access to care leavers’ services
across a range of budgets. These are in excess of the figures in the table above but included within
the overall projections for the department. As the system does not separately identify costs relating to
remand cases, it is not possible to identify this separately.

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Young People are also required to receive these leaving care
services and we have 11 over 18s which is putting pressure on the UASC budget.

NRPF: The majority of families presenting needs are housing. Meetings are on-going to discuss
options to reduce cost and strengthen processes and procedures. The expansion of the Merton
Action for Single Homeless Hostel agreed at Cabinet will assist with housing supply, but much greater
local supply is required. Discussions are on-going regarding the most economic way of procuring
housing for families with no recourse to public funds.

Supported lodgings/housing placements: smarter commissioning practices through working with
providers to negotiate reductions on placement costs and cost avoidance on proposed fee increases
are being explored. The implementation of a “Staying Put” policy as required by new legislation which
enables young people to remain in their foster placements post 18 is likely to be a cheaper option for
those young people who request it rather than moving into semi-independent provision. We are also
maximising the uptake of Housing Benefit for young people aged 18+.

Staff agency cover: The department has developed a scheme for newly qualified social workers
(NQSW) with the aim to employ ten to twelve additional members of staff supported and quality
assured by a practice assessment manager. We have also engaged an external organisation with the
help of the recruitment section to source permanent social worker staff to reduce agency cover.

Of the £860k savings identified for 2014/15, it is expected that SEN transport and LAC and SEN
placements will be partly delivered. Current estimates indicate that £768k will be achieved.

Page 14



(C) Community and Housing

As at the end of period 5 (August), C&H is forecast to over-spend by £1.706m,

Access and 42,397 43,814 1,417 1,354 (1,256)
Assessment

Commissioning 5,072 5,017 (55) (49) (116)
Direct Provision 4,181 4,937 756 788 214
Directorate 893 842 (51) (20) 70
Contribution from

Public Health 0 (500) (500) (500) 0
Adult Social Care 52,543 54,114 1,571 1,573 (1,088)
Libraries and 2,504 2,487 (17) 0 27
Heritage

Merton Adult (272) (114) 158 158 (29)
Education

Housing General 1,979 1,977 (2) (35) (32)
Fund

This overspending has been netted down by one off Public Health money of £500k and £290k of ASC
reserves for DOLs meaning that the underlying over-spending is £2.359m.

The additional 2014-15 Better Care Fund allocation of £1.3m is included in the above budget
allocation. A net £1m corporate growth was also allocated to the Adult Social Care budget.

Management Action
In order to reduce the forecast over-spend reported in P5, the following actions have been
considered:-

Transitional grant funding to Voluntary Organisations is being reduced with effect from September
2014, this will reduce over-spend by £84k.

It is proposed that £200k Better Care Fund allocated to Integrated Community Equipment is
reallocated to the placements budget, as there is currently sufficient budget in the pooled equipment
fund. Awaiting agreement from Merton CCG. This is a one measure pending permanent action.

Thresholds for care-packages going to resources panel have been lowered, meaning a lower level of
delegation to team managers.

Brokerage team is to be involved in all panel meetings to give further assurance that the best value
options are being followed.

Page 15



Subject to changes in management reports from Care First, real time financial and performance
targets and reports to be given to team managers

Also the audit of cases involving both direct payments and council commissioned services.

The Miles Reablement service workshop to develop the model is scheduled to start.

Budget manager expects all agency staff to cease by December, this is a month’s delay from
previously reported .

Review should generate some savings in the last quarter of the financial year.

ASC has received payment of grant allocation of £125k for the implementation of the Care Act.
The purpose of the grant is to provide additional support with building change management capacity
to implement the requirements of the Care Act in advance. A spend plan has been developed.

Access and Assessment - £1,417k over-spend

Miles —Reablement over-spend 390 306
Deprivation of Liberty 0 0
Other A&A under-spend (701) (779)
Gross Placements overspend 2,697 2,716
Sub-total Net over-spend 2,387 2,243
Over achievement of Client Contribution (584) (513)
Over achievement of CCG Contribution (384) (376)
Sub-Total over-achievement of Income (969) (889)

It has been agreed that the £290k budget pressure for DoLs will be funded from ASC IFRS Reserves.

Placements Budget Overview

Placements Overspend £2.7m
The total gross placement budget for 2014-15 is £37.6m and forecast total commitment is £40.3m

This includes £2.3m net growth allocated in setting the budget to deal with volume increases and
savings of £1.916m through improved efficiency, better commissioning and contracting and service
changes. There is therefore a net growth in the budget £0.4m plus inflation.

This is based on the latest data but is subject to wide potential variation.
The impact of the savings on the budget position for 2014-15 is being monitored.

The table below identifies the movement in care package numbers:

Page 16



No of Care No of Increase/ Total
Packages Care (decrease) Yearly
as at Packages since Commitm
October as at Budget ent @
Activity Data — Care Package 2013 Aug 2014 Setting Aug 14
Numbers (budget £000
Service Area setting)
Mental Health 157 150 (7) £1,601
Physical and Sensory 289 280 (9) £3,934
Learning Disabilities 369 403 34 £12,744
Older People 1,631 1,758 127 £20,993
Substance Misuse 8 18 10 £227
No recourse to public funds 12 12 0 £198
Transport £312
Other Placement Expenditure £121
TOTAL Gross placement 2,466 2,621 155 £40,318
expenditure

Gross expenditure in the placements budget is complex to monitor and depends on CareFirst records
and care packages always being up to date. It is essential to monitor that this continues.

The income budget was re-aligned as part of budget setting.

However based on latest data, income is currently forecast to over-achieve by £969. This needs to be
adjusted with the expenditure budget to more closely align both to the real situation. The monitoring
of income is a key budget area where enhancement of the monitoring is being further developed.

Commissioning under -spend £55k

It has been agreed that transitions funding to Voluntary organisations will be tapered off, so for
October 2014 to March 2015, organisations will receive half of the funding they received in the first
half of the financial year, but will not receive any funding in 2015/16. The effect of this agreement is
£183k over-spend on Voluntary Organisations budgets. Salaries budget is £36k under-spend due to
vacancies across the commissioning team. Supporting People grant is forecast to under-spend by
£124k; however the Underspend is not guaranteed due to on-going contract negotiation and subsidy
movements. There are under-spends in other areas in commissioning which will be used to off-set the
overall position of the department.

Direct Provision over-spend £756k

The main cause of the adverse variances is due to a over-spend on Transport SLA (Core-route)
charges. This budget is forecast to over-spend by £600k.

The department put forward a budget saving of £246k in this area which is clearly not being achieved.
Operational measures have been taken to reduce volumes within the SLA, but this volume reduction
has not been matched by a reduction in re-charges. This saving was proposed against an already
overspending budget

There is also budget pressure on salaries in Direct Provision.

Libraries- £17k under-spend

Libraries is reporting an under spend on the media fund and some short term vacancies.

Page 17



MAE - £158k over-spend

Over-spend is mainly due to forecast under-achievement of Income and the 2014/15 savings that
must be delivered or alternatives found elsewhere in the department. The service will require a
comprehensive review and a management action plan in 2014/15 to ensure that this saving is
delivered.

Although currently showing an overspend on expenditure, budget manager expects to contain
expenditure within budget by the end of the financial year. This should happen once budget is
realigned due to class closures.

Strategic options have been incorporated into the Target Operating Model

Housing is expected to under -spend by £2k

There has been an increase in forecast expenditure of £37k in Housing Needs from previous month
for the following £25k on a special project , to develop an on line tool for housing options and
registrations. Budget manager did not ‘bid’ for monies for this project via the capital board as he took
the view that this was not a major project. There have been discussions with Home Connections ,
current provider for choice based lettings and there is a plan to involve Corporate IT. Additional
forecast expenditure for Recruitment Adverts £2.5k, Customer survey £3.2k, Photocopying £5k, and

Miscellaneous fees £1.5k

Public Health

Public Health is forecast to underspend by £778k

Page 18

PH - Directorate 907 1,017 110 110 631
PH- Contraception 706 717 11 28 589
PH - STI Testing and Treatment 2,060 2,344 284 266 2,275
(GUM)

PH - SH Advice, Prevent and 360 267 (93) (75) 301
Promotion

PH - NHS Health check 232 227 (5) 5 172
PH - Falls Prevention 66 59 (7) (9) 55
PH - Obesity 348 344 (4) (5) 357
PH — Live well (including 355 316 (39) (39) 346
smoking cessation)

PH - Substance Misuse (drugs 2,057 1,672 (385) (385) 1,837
and alcohol)

PH - School Nursing (including 628 609 (19) (19) 570
National Child Measurement

programme)

PH - Surveillance and Control of 65 2 (63) (65) 0
Infectious Diseases

PH - Community Services 191 282 91 91 188
Contract Estates

PH - New Investments 1,151 492 659 687 0




The main causes of the forecast underspend on Public Health are as a result of delay to projects due
to the need for Council to make savings and reconfigure services and capacity in Public Health team.

There are also challenges to Public Health budget from MCCG of £900k.

Progress is being made on all these areas.

3D) Environment & Regeneration

Public Protection (7,046) (6,870) 176 204 243
Sustainable Communities (Excl. T&H) 2,509 2,912 403 174 (54)
Traffic & Highways (T&H) 8,578 9,129 551 529 (122)
Waste Services 14,159 15,058 899 895 (1,116)
Safer Merton 1,043 971 (72) (29) (63)
Other (752) (835) (83) (11) 537

Page 19




2014/15 Forecast Forecast
Current Variance at | Variance at
Description Budget year end year end
£000 (Aug) (July)
£000 £000
Employee overspend in Parking Services 2,476 53 96
Underachievement of income in Parking Services (12,184) 177 90
Other 2,662 (54) 18
Total for Public Protection (7,046) 176 204
Employee overspend within B&DC 1,580 259 70
General Supplies & Services underspend within B&DC 232 (95) (90)
Shortfall in Building & Development Control (B&DC) income (1,859) 213 263
Employee related underspend within Traffic & Highways 1,872 (166) (129)
Reduction in ability to Capitalise expenditure (464) 464 464
Overspend on third party payments within Traffic & Highways 2,340 83 132
Underachievement of Customer & Client Receipts in Traffic & Highways (1,453) 209 162
Overachievement of rental income in Property Management (4,042) (41) (45)
Employee overspend within Greenspaces 2,231 144 96
Overachievement of Other Grants & Contributions within Greenspaces (97) (99) (130)
Underachievement of Customer & Client Receipts within Greenspaces (2,324) 111 101
Employee overspend within Future Merton 1,388 35 46
Employee underspend within Senior Mgnt & Support 758 (36) (27)
Other (11,249) 127 (210)
Total for Sustainable Communities 11,087 954 703
Employee overspend within Waste Services 7,181 339 365
General Supplies & Services underspend within Waste Services 1,114 (175) (186)
Overspend on 3" Party Payments — principally SLWP 6,285 575 457
Transport related underspend within Waste Services 1,983 (310) (258)
Shortfall in Waste Services income — principally Commercial Waste (2,777) 448 510
Transport Services (752) (83) (11)
Other 373 22 7
Total for Street Scene & Waste 13,407 816 884
Employee underspend Safer Merton 840 (65) (55)
Other 203 (7) 26
Total for Safer Merton 1,043 (72) (29)

Overview

The department is currently forecasting an overspend of £1,874k at year end. The main areas of
variance are Waste Services, Traffic & Highways, Parking Services, Greenspaces, and Building &

Development Control.

Pressures

Public Protection

Parking Services

The section is currently forecasting an overspend of £196k. Contributing to this is a £53k staff
overspend, which is the result of employing additional agency CEOs to enforce areas not routinely

Page 20



enforced within the existing staff rotas, and to mitigate the effect of staff sickness on enforcement.
A further £177k is due to an overall underachievement of income.

Sustainable Communities

Greenspaces

The section is forecasting an overspend of £166k due to a few factors. Firstly, an employee
overspend of £144k is being forecast, which is as a result of overtime payments to cover for
absences, such as annual leave and sickness, in order to maintain service standards (£60k),
staffing the paddling pools (£40k), Wimbledon fortnight (£15k), and staffing of the firework displays
(£15K). Secondly, an underachievement of income totalling £111k is expected relating mainly to
sports bookings (£45k), and the hiring of openspaces e.g. Wimbledon Park athletics track (£48k).
These overspends are being partially mitigated by the reversal of a prior year corporate write-off
totalling £90k.

Building & Development Control

The section is currently forecasting an overspend of £313k mainly due to an employee overspend of
£259k, and a shortfall in Customer & Client receipts of £213k. This is partially offset by an
underspend of £95k in supplies and services. The employee overspend is the result of the additional
temporary staff for the agreed 2-year fixed term enhancement of the service.

Traffic & Highways

The section is forecasting an overspend of £551k, mainly as a result of a clearer understanding of
guidelines and actual patterns of expenditure meaning that the section charges a lower level of
highways maintenance spend to Capital than previously and, as a result, incurs increased revenue
costs. A permanent solution to this issue will be required before the 2015/16 budget is set.

The section also has a forecast income shortfall of £209k, mainly relating to the London Permitting
Scheme (LoPS) and street work activities, due to greater compliance.

These forecast overspends are being partially offset by an employee underspend of about £166k.

Street Scene & Waste

Waste Services

The section is currently forecasting an overspend of £899k, mainly due to a forecast shortfall in
Customer & Client receipts, specifically on Commercial activities (including Commercial Waste,
clinical waste and bulky waste collection) which is forecasting an income shortfall of around £706k.
This compares to a shortfall of £389k in 2013/14. However, an agreed saving of £250k has been
implemented in 2014/15 for Commercial Waste.

In addition, the section is currently projecting an employee related overspend of about £339k. This is
as a result of a combination of issues, including the need to realign the budget with the actual cost
of activities undertaken by refuse collection and street cleansing. There is also an element of non-
contractual overtime and agency cover for sick leave absences. Actions are being taken in order to
reduce this overspend wherever possible, including an action plan to reduce the level of sick leave
absence, and not covering absences with agency staff where this does not impact on service
delivery. In addition, the section is currently working with Eunomia to analyse the commercial waste
costs / income. Eunomia are conducting a “full” review of the service, seeking to deliver a final report

Page 21



on action required to improve profitability and income achievement. The report is expected later in
the calendar year..

Management Action

The department is implementing actions to mitigate the budget pressures where possible, and all
managers are aware of the need to contain expenditure and maximise income wherever possible.
Corporate guidance regarding the filling of vacant posts will be strictly adhered to.

(E) Corporate Items

The details comparing actual expenditure up to 31 August 2014 against budget are contained in
Appendix 2. The main areas of variance as at 31 August 2014 are:-

Cost of borrowing 14,103 14,032 -71 -72 -166

Use for Capital Programme 0 71 71 72 512
Investment Income -522 -522 0 0 -346
Pension Fund 13,434 13,434 0 0 21
Pay and Price Inflation 1,624 1,624 0 0 -314
Contingencies and provisions 4,392 3,401 -991 -977 845
Income Items 0 0 0 0 177
Appropriations/Transfers -3,368 -3,368 0 0 2,051

[Centraittems | 15560 14569| o1 o077 [ 2,080

Levies 931 931 1] 0 0
Depreciation and Impairment 15,227 | -15,227 0 0 3

There has been a small change in the forecast variance since July, and as previously advised, it is
anticipated that the contingencies and provisions budgets will be underutilised by c. £1m.

There are no other significant variations in the corporate expenditure forecast against budget in
August.

Page 22



4, CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014-18 — August Monitoring

41 Capital Expenditure

4.1.1 Over the past three financial years considerable work has been undertaken to reduce the
Capital Programme to levels that can be delivered with our current staffing complement.
Historically this has been shown to be around £40 million per annum, in 2013/14 this reduced
to £30 million. The July Cabinet approved capital programme was just under £52 million, the
proposed programme is just under £50 million.

Comparison of Spend to August between 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15

Variance | Variance

Department Spend To | Spend To Spend To | 2012 to 2013 to

P Aug 2012 | Aug 2013 Aug 2014 | 2014 2014
Children Schools and Families 10,045 2,851 5,854 (4,191) 3,003
Corporate Services 1,006 1,049 216 (790) (833)
Community and Housing 362 785 109 (253) (676)
Environment and Regeneration 3,624 3,396 1,396 (2,228) (2,000)
Total Capital 15,037 8,081 7,575 (7,462) (506)
Outturn £000s 40,487 31,564
Budget £000s 49,717
Projected Spend October 2013 £000s 46,197
Percentage Spend to Budget 15.24%
Percentage Spend to 37.14% 25.60%  16.40%

Outturn/Projection

4.1.2 August is five months of the way through the financial year however departments have only
spent 15.2% of their budget or 16.4% of their forecast, in the last two years spend was in the
region of 30% of the final outturn by this point. To achieve a projected spend of £46.1m officers
will need to spend just over £4.8m per month for each of the remaining 7 months. The table
below shows that in July 2014 departments have managed to spend just over £2.3 million.

Spend To | Spend To Variance
Department July 2014 | Aug 2014
Children Schools and Families 3,924 5,854 1,930
Corporate Services 185 216 31
Community and Housing 107 109 2
Environment and Regeneration 1,017 1,396 379
Total Capital 5,233 7,575 2,342

Page 23



4.2

4.21

Capital Programme 2014/15

the detail is shown in Appendix 5a:

Merton Summary Capital Report - August 2014 Monitoring

The table below summarises the position in respect of the Capital Programme as at July 2014

Scheme Description Total YTD YTD Variance Forecast Forecast

Budget Actual Budget To Date For Year Variance
Community and Housing 2,817,720 109,098 313,340 (204,242) | 2,814,729 (2,991)
Corporate Services 6,013,500 216,181 1,715,097 | (1,498,916) | 3,477,620 | (2,535,880)
Children Schools and Families 27,790,560 | 5,854,497 | 9,350,997 | (3,496,501) | 27,352,438 (438,122)
Environment and Regeneration 13,095,490 | 1,395,948 1,657,996 (262,049) | 12,551,955 (458,535)
Total Capital 49,717,270 | 7,575,724 | 13,037,430 | (5,461,708) | 46,196,742 | (3,435,528)
Notes

1. Corporate Services the bulk projected under spend is due to three corporate schemes —
Acquisitions (£1,042k), Capital Bidding Fund (£500k) and Capital Transformation
(£400k) which are held to fund transformation activity throughout the organisation.

2. Children, Schools and Families — The major cause of the projected variance is slippage
in the programme at Singlegate School of £411k.

3. Environment and Regeneration — the following projected underspends/slippage against
this year’s budget account for the bulk of the projected variances on this forecast:

£000's
Mitcham/Colliers Wood Regeneration Schemes 130
Mobile Working 50
Wimbledon Town Centre Transport Improvements 47
Shopfront Improvements 43
River Wandle Footbridge 30
Lombard Industrial Estate 24
Fair Green 23
Poulter Park 22
Shared Space 20
Total 389

4.2.2 The adjustments being made to the capital programme are detailed in Appendix 5b and the
impact on funding of these changes is detailed in Appendix 5c. The Table below shows the
adjustments to the Capital Programme since its approval in March 2014:

Page 24



Changes to the Capital Programme 2014/15 since March 2014

Children, Schools and Families 27,193 304 0 869 0 (575) 27,791
Corporate Services 8,829 169 (538) 0 0 (2,446) 6,014
Community and Housing 2,603 302 (170) 0 42 40 2,817
Environment & Regeneration 15,920 1,368 1,233 0 (5,426) 13,095
Total 54,545 2,143 (708) 2,102 42 | (8,407) 49,717

4.2.2 The Table below details the changes made to the approved programme within Appendix 5.

CSF 27,791 0 27,791 15,297 0 15,297 22,087 0 22,087 21,399 0 21,399
cs 6,014 0 6,014 5,000 0 5,000 3,862 0 3,862 2,806 0 2,806
C&H 2,775 42 2,817 1,114 115 1,229 1,334 0 1,334 340 0 340
E&R 15,316 (2,221) 13,095 22,999 2,868 25,867 7,150 1,185 8,335 4,501 0 4,501
Total 51,896 (2,179) 49,717 44,410 2,983 47,393 34,433 1,185 35,618 29,046 0 29,046

4.2.3 Appendix 5b details the adjustments being made to the programme, and request four sizeable
adjustments to the Transport for London Programme of Capital Works these are:

Transport for London SBT:égr;? Viregwent %i‘%;‘:?

Haydons Road 374,000 | (374,000 0
Central Road 0 360,000 360,000
Coombe Lane 0 90,000 90,000
London Rd Lower Green to Cricket 76,000 (76,000) 0
Total 0 0 0

4.2.4 Transport for London (TfL) fully funds an agreed programme for Merton’s major roads each
financial year. This programme is draw from a list of priority schemes, with funding normally
agreed for the current and following financial year. During the financial year amendments are
made to the in-year programme with some schemes being brought forward and some pushed
back. When setting the original budget for the new financial year the schemes loaded into our
capital programme for TfL reflect the schemes already agreed. These schemes are then
adjusted for the programme of works completed in the prior year once replacement schemes
have been agreed. The adjustments in the table above are requested as a result of this
process.

Page 25




5. DELIVERY OF SAVINGS FOR 2014/15

Target | Projected
Department Savings | Savings | Shortfall | Shortfall
2014/15 | 2014/15
£000's £000's £000's %
Corporate Services 1,650 1,590 (60) (3.6)%
Children Schools and
Families 860 768 (92) | (10.71)%
Community and Housing 2,465 562 (1,903) | (77.2)%
Environment and
Regeneration 3,338 2,863 (475) | (14.2)%
Total 8,313 5,783 (2,530) | (30.4)%

5.1  The savings projected to be achieved are showing a significant shortfall against the target of
approx. 2.5m. The projected shortfall in C&H needs to be addressed urgently and highlights
that savings are not being implemented.

Detailed progress on savings by department is reported in Appendix 6.

6. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED

6.1 All relevant bodies have been consulted.

7. TIMETABLE

71 In accordance with current financial reporting timetables.

8. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS

8.1  All relevant implications have been addressed in the report.

9. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS

9.1  All relevant implications have been addressed in the report.

10. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS
10.1  Not applicable

11. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

Not applicable

12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

12.1  Officers are currently reviewing risks and issues facing the Authority, the revised Key Strategic

Risk Register as at June 2014 will be reported to Cabinet as part of the July Monitoring Report.

Page 26



13. APPENDICES - THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED WITH THIS
REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT
Appendix 1 — Detailed monthly position table
Appendix 2 — Detailed Corporate Items table
Appendix 3 — Pay and Price Inflation as at June 2012
Appendix 4 — Treasury Management: Outlook
Appendix 5a — Current Capital Programme 2014/15 — July Monitoring Information
Appendix 5b — Adjustments to the Capital Programme
Appendix 5¢ — Funding the Capital Programme
Appendix 6 — Progress on Savings
Appendix 7 - Forecast year end variance by department

14. BACKGROUND PAPERS
14.1 Budgetary Control files held in the Corporate Services department.

15. REPORT AUTHOR
— Name: Paul Dale

— Tel: 020 8545 3458
— email: paul.dale@merton.gov.uk

Page 27



APPENDIX 1

Summary Position as at 31st
August 2014 APPENDIX 1

Department _
3A.Corporate Services 11,285 12,772 13,150 11,895 12,280 (492) (686)
3B.Children, Schools and Families 48,040 48,296 68,061 69,726 51,479 3,183 2,662
3C.Community and Housing _
Adult Social Care 55,894 56,503 23,550 24,750 58,071 1,568 1,572
Libraries & Adult Education 3,232 3,232 1,672 1,630 3,373 141 158
Housing General Fund 2,207 2,256 1,022 1,152 2,253 3) (35)
3D.Public Health 0 0 (706) (3,056) (0) (0) (784)
3E.Environment & Regeneration 22,853 24,116 4,706 3,164 25,991 1,875 1,762
Overheads 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3E.Corporate Items _
Impact of Capital on revenue budget 14,103 14,103 2,788 1,893 14,103 0 0
Other Central items 3,996 333 -1 ,964 -2,249 -658 (991) (977)
Levies 931 931 391 391 931 0 0

Funding _

- Business Rates -33253 -33253 -3847 -3847 -33253 0 0
-RSG -39738 -39738 -24832 -24832 -39738 0 0
- Council Tax Freeze Grant 2014/15 -858 -858 -426 -426 -858 0 0
Section 31 Grant -1118 -1118 -480 -480 -1199 -81 -81
- New Homes Bonus -3199 -3199 -1397 -1397 -3199 0 0
- PFI Grant -4797 -4797 -1199 -1199 -4797 0 0
Collection Fund - Council Tax Surplus(-)/Deficit -4608 -4608 0 0 -4608 0 0
Collection Fund - Business Rates Surplus(-

)/Deficit 372 372 0 0 372 0 0
Council Tax

- General -75049 -75049 0 0 -75049 0 0

- WPCC -293 -293 0 0 -293 0 0

Page 28



Expenditure £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employees 92,795 38,366 38,690 94,967 2,172 1,709 275
Premises Related Expenditure 9,569 5,164 3,229 9,284 (285) (284) (891)
Transport Related Expenditure 13,258 5,434 5,407 14,491 1,233 1,014 20
Supplies and Services 167,105 59,354 57,998 167,475 370 47) 1,933
Third Party Payments 84,864 34,573 31,406 89,427 4,564 4,367 (2,106)
Transfer Payments 108,347 4,251 4,763 104,009 (4,338) (288) 6,442
Support Services 32,421 0 0 32,421 (1) (1) 1,501
Depreciation and Impairment Losses 15,227 0 0 15,226 (1) (1) 0)
Corporate Provisions 15,367 1,215 35 14,376 (991) (977) 2,429

Income

Government Grants (263,313) (5,928) (7,301) | (259,314) 3,999 (44) (6,425)
Other Grants, Reimbursements and

Contribs (23,559) (7,303) (3,752) (24,413) (854) (707) (2,361)
Customer and Client Receipts (56,333) (22,474) (21,010) (56,603) (271) 182 (1,141)
Interest (44) 0 0 (19) 25 25 25
Recharges (33,020) (62) (6) (33,019) 1 0 (1,446)
Balances (141) 84 (163) (485) (343) (1,278) 2,352
GROSS INCOME (376,410) (35,685) (32,233) | (373,853) 2,557 (1,820) (8,994)

Page 29



APPENDIX 2

Cost of Borrowing 14,103 | 14,103 | 14,103 2,788 1,893 14,032 -71 -72
Use for Capital Programme 0 0 0 0 0 71 71 72
Impact of Capital on revenue budget 14,103 | 14,103 14,103 2,788 1,893 14,103 0 0
Investment Income -522 -522 -522 -218 -153 -522 0 0
Pension Fund 13,434 | 13,434 | 13,434 0 0 13,434 0 0
Corporate Provision for Pay Award 807 807 807 336 0 807 0 0
Provision for inflation in excess of 1.5% 538 538 517 0 0 517 0 0
Utilities Inflation Provision 300 300 300 0 0 300 0 0
Pay and Price Inflation 1,645 1,645 1,624 336 0 1,624 0 0
Contingency 1,500 1,500 1,423 0 24 432 -991 -977
Single Status/Equal Pay 100 100 100 33 16 100 0 0
Bad Debt Provision 500 500 500 0 0 500 0 0
Loss of income arising from P3/P4 400 400 400 0 0 400 0 0
Revenuisation and miscellaneous 2,166 2,166 1,969 0 0 1,969 0 0
Contingencies and provisions 4,666 4,666 4,392 33 40 3,401 -991 -977
Local Services Support Grant -20 0 0 0
Income items 0 0 0 0 -20 0 0 0
Appropriations: CS Reserves 0 0 1201 | <1201 -1,.291 1,291 0 0
Appropriations: E&R Reserves 0 0 1256 73 73 1256 0 0
Appropriations: CSF Reserves 0 0 158 -89 -89 158 0 0
Appropriations: C&H Reserves 0 0 663 663 -663 -663 0 0
Appropriations/Transfers 0 0 -3,368 | -2,116 | -2,116 -3,368 0 0
Depreciation and Impairment -15,227 | -15,227 | -15,227 0 0| -15,227 0 0
Central ltems 18,099 | 18,099 | 14,436 824 -356 13,445 -991 -977
Levies 931 931 931 391 391 931 0 0

Page 30




APPENDIX 3

Pay and Price Inflation as at August 2014

In 2014/15, the budget includes 1% for increases in pay and 1.5% for increases in general prices,
with an additional amount of £0.517m which is held to assist services that may experience price
increases greatly in excess of the 1.5% inflation allowance provided when setting the budget. At
present it is not anticipated that there will be a significant call on this budget but this will not be
released until there is greater clarity.

Pay:
2014/15 — The MTFS approved by Council on the 5th March 2014 includes 1% for increases in pay.

This equates to £0.807m and is held as a corporate provision.

The national joint council (NJC) trade union side, the negotiators for local government pay, have
submitted the following claim for a pay increase for its members in 2014-15:

“A minimum increase of £1 an hour on scale point 5 to achieve the living wage and the same
flat rate increase on all other scale points.”

The Local Government Association responded by offering Council employees a pay increase from 1
April 2014. All staff earning £14,880 or more would receive a 1% rise. Staff earning less than this
would receive extra, in order to keep their hourly rate at least 25p above the national minimum wage.
The national minimum wage is due to increase by 3.0% to £6.50 on 1 October 2014.

Union members have rejected the offer and took strike action on 10 July. No further talks have taken
place since that date, although the unions have offered to go to the Government'’s arbitration and
conciliation service. GMB, UNISON and Unite have agreed that their members will run a co-ordinated
strike of their local government and school members on 14 October.

The Government has stipulated that it wants to restrict public sector pay awards to an average of 1%
for 2014/15 (Autumn Statement 2011) and 1% for 2015/16 (Spending Round 2013).

Prices:

CPI annual inflation was 1.5% in August 2014, which is down from 1.6% in July 2014. The main
contributors to the drop in the rate were the price of motor fuels and food and non-alcoholic drinks
costs. The drop was partially offset by an increase in clothing prices, transport services costs and
alcohol.

CPIH, the measure of consumer price inflation including owner occupiers’ housing costs, grew by
1.5% in the year to August 2014, unchanged from July 2014. Owner occupiers’ housing costs
increased by 0.1% between August 2014 and July 2014.

RPI annual inflation stands at 2.4% in July 2014, down from 2.5% in July 2014.

Outlook for inflation:

On 4 September 2014, the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted to maintain
the Bank Base Rate at 0.5%. The Committee also voted to continue with its programme of asset
purchases totalling £375 billion, financed by the issuance of central bank reserves. The MPC reached
its decisions in the context of the monetary policy guidance announced alongside the publication of
the August 2013 Inflation Report.

Page 31



In the minutes published on 17 September, the MPC noted that “looking ahead, Bank staff expected
twelve-month inflation to fall slightly further, reflecting the higher exchange rate, lower crude oil
prices, and some utility price base effects. It was then expected to pick up a little towards the end of
the year. Import price pressures more broadly remained muted.” Regarding pressures from
employees costs the MPC found that wage inflation continues to be weak and had probably “been
depressed by changes in the composition of employment towards individuals with lower wage levels,
such as those with fewer qualifications or workers with less tenure. As the impact of these
compositional changes waned over time, earnings growth might well rise, perhaps bringing it more
into line with some of the surveys. However, these compositional effects need have little impact on
labour costs, and so inflationary pressure, if they affected pay and productivity to a similar degree.
Labour costs per unit of output were currently rising by only around 1% per year, considerably weaker
than was consistent with the inflation target in the long run."

The Office for National Statistics reports that the unemployment rate fell to 6.2% in the three months
to the end of July, its lowest level since the bank bailouts of October 2008. The number of people out
of work declined 146,000 to 2.02m, with the number of claimants for Jobseeker’s Allowance falling
below 1m in August. However, wages continue to lag the current 1.5% rate of CPI inflation, with pay
including bonuses up 0.6% on an annual basis.

The latest inflation and unemployment forecasts for the UK economy, based on a summary of
independent forecasts are set out in the following table:-

Source: HM Treasury - Forecasts for the UK Economy (September 2014)
2014 (Quarter 4) Lowest % | Highest % | Average %
CPI 1.0 2.6 1.7
RPI 2.0 3.4 2.5
LFS Unemployment Rate 5.7 6.3 6.1
2015 (Quarter 4) Lowest % | Highest % | Average %
CPI 1.7 3.3 2.1
RPI 2.6 4.5 3.3
LFS Unemployment Rate 4.4 6.1 5.6

The medium term forecasts based on a summary average of independent forecasts (August 2014) for
2014 to 2018 are set out in the following table:-

Source: HM Treasury — Medium Term Forecasts for the UK Economy (August 2014)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
CPI 1.7% 2.0% 2.1% 2.1% 21%
RPI 2.4% 3.1% 3.5% 3.4%)] 3.4%
LFS Unemployment Rate 6.4% 5.9% 5.6% 5.5% 4.8%

Clearly where the level of inflation during the year exceeds the amount provided for in the budget, this
will put pressure on services to stay within budget and will require effective monitoring and control.

Page 32



APPENDIX 4
Treasury Management: Outlook

The Bank Base Rate has been kept at its low of 0.5% since March 2009. On 4 September 2014, the
Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted to maintain the Bank Base Rate at 0.5%.
The Committee also voted to continue with its programme of asset purchases totalling £375 billion,
financed by the issuance of central bank reserves.

In the MPC minutes published on 17 September 2014, the MPC reiterated that although the Bank
Base Rate is expected to increase in the next few months, it was likely to be a gentle and phased
increase. Although two members of the MPC again voted for a 0.25% increase this was rejected and
the MPC believe that “given the likely persistence of headwinds weighing on the economy, when
Bank Rate did begin to rise, it was expected to do so only gradually. Moreover, the persistence of
those headwinds, together with the legacy of the financial crisis, meant that Bank Rate was expected
to remain below average historical levels for some time to come. The actual path Bank Rate would
follow over the next few years was uncertain, and would depend on economic circumstances. In other
words, the Committee’s guidance on the likely pace and extent of interest rate rises was an
expectation, not a promise. “

Analysts are predicting that rates will begin to rise in early 2015. Low inflation is currently helping the
Bank of England to keep rates low.

The MPC makes its decisions in the context of the monetary policy forward guidance announced
alongside the publication of the August 2013 Inflation Report. This guidance was summarised and
reported in the July 2013 monitoring report.

The Inflation Report for February 2014 provided a summary of the Bank of England’s approach to its
proposed monetary policy as the economy recovers and once the unemployment threshold has been
reached:-

e The MPC sets policy to achieve the 2% inflation target, and, subject to that, to support the
Government’s economic policies, including those for growth and employment.

e Despite the sharp fall in unemployment, there remains scope to absorb spare capacity further
before raising Bank Rate.

¢ When Bank Rate does begin to rise, the appropriate path so as to eliminate slack over the next
two to three years and keep inflation close to the target is expected to be gradual.

e The actual path of Bank Rate over the next few years will, however, depend on economic
developments.

e Even when the economy has returned to normal levels of capacity and inflation is close to the
target, the appropriate level of Bank Rate is likely to be materially below the 5% level set on
average by the Committee prior to the financial crisis.

e The MPC intends to maintain the stock of purchased assets at least until the first rise in Bank
Rate.

Page 33



¢ Monetary policy may have a role to play in mitigating risks to financial stability, but only as a last
line of defence if those risks cannot be contained by the substantial range of policy actions

available to the Financial Policy Committee and other regulatory authorities.

The Bank of England published the August Inflation Report on 13 August. Changes to the Bank Base
Rate will depend on how quickly the economy recovers and will be set to achieve the inflation target

of 2%.

The MPC sets monetary policy to meet the 2% target in the medium term and in a way that helps to
sustain growth and employment.

Bank Base Rates forecasts, based on July 2014, are set out in the following table:-

End End End End End End End End End End End End
Q.3 Q.4 Q.1 Q.2 Q.3 Q4 Q.1 Q.2 Q.3 Q4 Q.1 Q,2
2014 | 2014 2015 2015 | 2015 2015 2016 | 2016 2016 2016 2017 2017
Capita 0.5% | 0.5% | 0.75% | 0.75% 1.0% 1.0% | 1.25% | 1.25% | 1.5% | 1.75% 2.0% 2.0%
Capital 0.5% | 0.5% | 0.75% | 0.75% 1.0% 1.0% | 1.25% | 1.25% 1.5% 1.5%
Economics

AWAITING UPDATE FOR THIS TABLE.

Page 34




Appendix 5a

Community & Housing Summary Capital Report - August 2014 Monitoring

Scheme Description Total YTD YTD Variance Forecast Forgcast
Budget Actual Budget To Date For Year Variance
Adult Social Care 140,980 | (10,129) 8,080 (18,209) 140,019 (961)
Libraries Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
Adult Education and Community 0 0 0 0 0 0
Housing 2,676,740 | 119,227 305,260 (186,033) | 2,674,710 (2,030)
Community and Housing Total 2,817,720 | 109,098 313,340 (204,242) | 2,814,729 (2,991)

Corporate Services Summary Capital Report - August 2014 Monitoring

Scheme Description Total YTD YTD Variance Forecast Forfacast

Budget Actual Budget To Date For Year Variance
Business Improvement 1,306,350 26,310 547,397 (521,087) 893,840 (412,510)
Corporate Governance 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Items 1,542,340 0 833,330 (833,330) 0 | (1,542,340)
Facilities Management Total 1,410,920 | 107,834 296,468 (188,634) | 1,295,000 (115,920)
IT Total 1,180,280 82,037 112,902 (30,865) 980,280 (200,000)
Resources 333,450 0 0 0 308,500 (24,950)
IT Transformation Unallocated 240,160 0 (75,000) 75,000 0 (240,160)
Corporate Services Total 6,013,500 | 216,181 | 1,715,097 | (1,498,916) | 3,477,620 | (2,535,880)

Page 35




Appendix 5a

Children, Schools & Families Summary Capital Report - August 2014 Monitoring

Scheme Description Total YTD YTD Variance Forecast Forfzcast
Budget Actual Budget To Date For Year Variance
Aragon expansion 0 (31,207) 0 (31,207) 0 0
Benedict expansion 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cranmer expansion 2,051,770 | 1,873,047 854,904 1,018,143 2,051,770 0
Primary Expansion Contingency 0 0 0 0 0 0
Joseph Hood Permanent
Expansn 219,830 (12,902) 219,830 (232,732) 219,830 0
Holy Trinity Expansion 61,000 56,348 39,740 16,608 61,002 2
St Mary's expansion™ 2,946,040 660,536 816,709 (156,173) | 2,946,044 4
All Saints/ South Wim YCC exp 9,250 0 9,250 (9,250) 9,250 0
Gorringe Park expansion 9,620 (14,056) 18,570 (32,626) 9,618 (2)
Hillcross School Expansion 3,492,490 403,756 971,082 (567,326) 3,492,485 (5)
Merton Abbey Temp
Accomodation 3,452,300 714,813 | 1,020,353 (305,540) | 3,452,305 5
Pelham School Expansion 3,200,000 456,221 | 1,130,178 (673,957) | 3,200,000 0
Dundonald expansion 981,790 135,104 667,300 (532,197) 981,793 3
Poplar Permanent Expansion 3,450,260 | 1,134,734 | 1,170,952 (36,218) | 3,450,263 3
Liberty expansion 2,620 2,077 2,620 (543) 2,620 0
Singlegate expansion 4,291,090 228,901 | 1,197,650 (968,749) | 3,880,150 (410,940)
Wimbledon Park expansion 429,380 82,298 369,380 (287,082) 429,380 0
Primary Expansion 24,597,440 | 5,689,670 | 8,488,518 | (2,798,849) | 24,186,510 (410,930)

Page 36




Appendix 5a

Children, Schools & Families Summary Capital Report - August 2014 Monitoring Continued ...

Scheme Description Total YTD YTD Variance Forecast Forgcast
Budget Actual Budget To Date For Year Variance
Devolved Formula Capital 439,640 152,095 439,640 (287,545) 365,028 (74,612)
Early Years 0 (59,158) 0 (59,158) 0 0
Free School Meals 437,090 90,243 0 90,243 437,090 0
Garden PCP 0 0 12,310 (12,310) 12,310 12,310
Schools Access Initiative Inc 0 (711) 0 (711) 850 850
SS Peter & Paul PCP 0 0 0 0 0 0
St Ann's Primary Phase 0 20,610 0 20,610 0 0
Cricket Green Site 50,050 5,330 50 5,280 50,050 0
Primary school autism unit 320,000 1,095 53,749 (52,654) 320,000 0
Breaks-disabled children grant 0 (4,038) 0 (4,038) 0 0
Perseid 480,600 0 18,375 (18,375) 480,600 0
Secondary School Autism Unit 40,000 0 0 0 40,000 0
Lonesome - Main Heating 0 (1,194) 0 (1,194) 7,370 7,370
The Sherwood-Boiler&Perim Fnc 0 (1,868) 0 (1,868) 9,350 9,350
West Wim-Boiler&Perim Fnc 0 0 0 0 7,090 7,090
Wimb Chase-Dining Hall Roof 0 (760) 0 (760) 0 0
Cricket Gn-Imprved site access 0 0 0 0 0 0
Morden - Safer access scheme 0 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 0 0
Merton Pk- Entrance adaptation 630 0 630 (630) 11,080 10,450
Schs Cap Maint & Accessibility 686,170 7,656 174,920 (167,264) 686,170 0
B631 - Solar PV Raynes Prk Pav 0 (17,000) 0 (17,000) 0 0
Raynes Park Sports Pavilion 4,770 (25,257) 4,770 (30,027) 4,770 0
Secondary School expansion 0 0 41,665 (41,665) 0 0
Harris Merton 4fe 50,000 0 0 0 50,000 0
St Marks 4fe 50,000 0 0 0 50,000 0
Harris Morden 4fe now 2fe 50,000 0 0 0 50,000 0
Ricards Lodge 2fe 25,000 0 0 0 25,000 0
New School 6fe 100,000 0 0 0 100,000 0
Schools Equipment Loans 372,800 0 50,000 (50,000) 372,800 0
ICT Harnessing Technolgy Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0
Wimbledon Chase DCSF grant 68,980 3,579 68,980 (65,401) 68,980 0
Youth&Comm centres reprovision 17,390 (795) (2,610) 1,815 17,390 0
3,193,120 164,827 862,479 (697,652) | 3,165,928 (27,192)
Children Schools and Families | 27,790,560 | 5,854,497 | 9,350,997 | (3,496,501) | 27,352,438 (438,122)

Page 37




Appendix 5a

Environment & Regeneration Summary Capital Report - August 2014 Monitoring

Scheme Description Total YTD YTD Variance Forecast Forgcast
Budget Actual Budget To Date For Year Variance
Footways Planned Works 1,000,000 116,335 197,741 (81,406) | 1,000,000 0
Greenspaces 966,200 312,750 131,742 181,008 869,550 (11,650)
Highways General Planned
Works 747,390 88,612 96,211 (7,599) 670,250 (77,140)
Highways Planned Road Works 1,783,100 52,545 279,634 (227,089) | 1,783,100 0
Leisure Centres 1,609,290 221,923 541,285 (319,362) | 1,609,290 0
Other E&R 114,340 (2,893) 27,660 (30,553) 63,840 (50,500)
On and Off Street Parking 42,910 22,456 4,000 18,456 42,910 0
Plans and Projects 130,000 0 40,000 (40,000) 130,000 0
Regeneration Partnerships 2,493,410 114,851 (48,875) 163,726 | 2,342,435 (150,975)
Street Lighting 410,000 22,550 92,189 (69,639) 410,000 0
Street Scene 375,190 11,226 80,127 (68,902) 315,000 (60,190)
Transport for London 2,326,350 335,242 107,284 227,958 | 2,295,550 (30,800)
Traffic and Parking Management 173,230 39,533 43,500 (3,967) 173,230 0
Transport and Plant 678,680 28,563 54,998 (26,435) 601,400 (77,280)
Safer Merton - CCTV & ASB 0 0 0 0 0 0
Environmental Health 0 18,736 0 18,736 0 0
Waste Operations 215,400 13,519 10,500 3,019 215,400 0
Dev and Licensing PH
Framework 30,000 0 0 0 30,000 0
Environment and Regeneration | 13,095,490 | 1,395,948 | 1,657,996 (262,049) | 12,551,955 (458,535)

Page 38



0 0 08262 08.'62 0 0 (082'62) 08.'62 SHed USpION 1ZGg
0 0 0 0 01L0'sS 0108 000°L¥ 1se3 apisuowwo) g/9g
000'9s1'c | ooo'ssi‘r | ooo'rzer | osrest's | osz'ssiz | 000'zz8 000221’ | oez'esy's | (08L'ssL'z) | (og6'ze) 0 000°299'S 1ejoL
0 0 029°'6 (056'8) 0,581 uoisuedx3 yied buiio9
0 0 00019 09z'12 ob2'6E UoISUBdX ATUL L AIOH
0 0 0 (ore'zh) ole'zl dOd usplen
saljlwe4 pue s|ooyas ‘uaIpiiyd

0 0 0 01961 019'61 0 SI1SNAPIOD [ESIAAIUN
00009 00009 000°0% 0000 0Zv'zs ocr'el 000°0 IO SHieday [lews
000'v2L 000722 000722 000'v2. 0Lb'SPE'L oez'oL orz'see’t JUeID seflideS palgesia
0 0 000'SLL 00041 0 0 0 PEOY UISISOM £61-161
BuisnoH pue Ajunwwon

000051 000051 000'sEL 000'sE} 0cL'sel €L 000'GEL Sawaydg olyel ).
0 0 0 0 0 (000'9) 0009 (¢ pue | uondo) easy yred YbiH
0 0 000°00€ 000'00€ 0 0£9°10¥ (000°'00¢) 0£9'10L JusWwanoidw] 91U8D UMO L WEYd
0 0 0 0 0 (0g2) 0g. sawaydg olyel] MeN
000°2£0°} 000°2€0'} 000°889°L | ooo‘OLY 000'822'1 0 (000°01¥) 000°0L JUSWISBAU] BJUSD UMO|
000°00€ 000°00€ 000°00€ 000°'G¥L 000'GSL 0 (0o00'G¥L) 000'G¥L (Buipuny yojew) A1LDD
0 0 0 0 008821 (00211 000'0%} oueyduio) dois sng
0 0 0 0 00922 (00v'2) 000°0€ auwieJboid ybnoiog bubiig
0 0 0 0 0 (000'92) 0009 BLASHOUD 03 UBBID J8MOT Py UOPUOT
0 0 0 0 00006 00006 0 i1 8ueT 8quiood
0 0 0 0 000'09¢ 000'09€¢ 0 L PEOY [EUSD
0 0 0 0 0 (000'%2€) 000'v2€ UL - PEOY SuopAeH
0 0 0 0 00006 (000°04) 000001 Juswarodw 8joAS
0 0 0 0 000'v8L (000'91) 000'00Z S10040g puE uononpay Ajensed
0 0 0 0 00v'l (009°1) 000°02 65500y 5ng ot e
0 0 0 0 000'v81 (000°94) 000'00Z bupped/sseade apAd
0 0 0 0 000021 (000°01) 000'0€} swiLIelboId Alllqissad0y
000588 000588 0 000°008°L 000'eveL 000°28S 0 000002 (oo0'eve'L) 000°€¥'L sawayos Jolepy Weyol
0 0 000'82 000'82 0 0 (000'82) 000'82 DUBIOH PUE g WEUUBHOD o-ouren
0 0 08.'62 08.'6¢ 0 (] (082'62) 08.'62 Sded uspioN LZSg
0 0 0 0 010'ss 0108 0002 1se3 9pisuoWWoD 8/9g
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 u0yeouISAY 7y JuSWOAUY
qs Xipuaddy Suipunj MaN pue suljiyoid-ay 'JUSWAIIN

Page 39



Capital Programme Funding Summary 2014/15

Appendix 5c

Funded from Flg:,gﬁf ; y
Merton’s Capital Total
FOSCEEE Contributions
£000s £000s £000s

Cabinet - September 2014 21,076 30,820 51,896
Environment and Regeneration

B521 - Morden Park 0 (30) (30)
B626a--c Cottenham Park & Holland Garden 0 (28) (28)
Mitcham Major Schemes 0 (1,243) (1,243)
Mitcham Town Centre Imp (300) 0 (300)
Town Centre Investment (410) 0 (410)
B678 Commonside East 0 8 8
Accessibility Programme 0 (10) (10)
Cycle access/parking 0 (16) (16)
Victoria Road Bus Access Improvement 0 (2) (2)
Casualty Reduction and Schools 0 (16) (16)
Cycle Improvement 0 (10) (10)
Biking Borough Programme 0 (2) (2)
Bus Stop Compliance 0 (11) (11)
CCTV (match funding) (145) 0 (145)
High Path Area (Option 1 and 3) (6) 0 (6)
Community & Housing

Disabled Facilities Grant 0 10 10
Small Repairs Grant 0 12 12
Universal Coldbusters 0 20 20
Cabinet - October 2014 20,215 29,502 49,717

Page 40



Capital Programme Funding Summary 2015/16

Appendix 5c

Funded from AU
Merton’s Grar!t & Total
Resources Ca_p|ta_l
Contributions
£000s £000s £000s

Cabinet - September 2014 9,612 34,799 44,411
Environment and Regeneration
B521 - Morden Park 0 30 30
B626a--c Cottenham Park & Holland Garden 0 28 28
Mitcham Major Schemes 0 1,800 1,800
Mitcham Town Centre Improvements 300 0 300
Town Centre Improvements 410 0 410
CCTV (match funding) 300 0 300
Community and Housing
191-193 Western Road 0 115 115
Cabinet - October 2014 10,622 36,772 47,394

Page 41




90INIBS
Jejeg |ned 0 0S 0S uoljuanald pue uonuaaidiu| Alde3 Joy sjabpng Bujuolssiwwod ul uoonpay| §0-Z1024SD
ajuew.oliad pue Abajeas ‘Buiuoissiwuwio)

‘sbuines ajessuab
0} aoe[d ul Ind usaq
9ABY S8INpPad0ld "S}S09 IXe}
asealoul 0] anp puadsiano
ue Bunseoaloy s Jbpng
Hodsuel; [leJaAQ “tL/EL0T Ul
asealoul ue 0} anp }abpnq
8y} 8Aoqge 400gF eodid

s| abieyo yS [enuue ay | yodsues; N3IS Jo uoisiaoid ay}

A ‘paonpal atam s}ebpnq aseg uie uer v 0. 0. 1] 4" 10} sanljigisuodsad Aloniels s, [1ounod 8y} Buljjiyny JO S|PpoW Mau 8onpoau|| 80-Z1024S)D
uilep uer 0 001 001 S9I0UBIIYS JBAIISP 0} Juswubijeal pue buunioniisal adIARS| €0-21024SD
uilen uer 0 0L 0. S910UBIIYd Juswabeuew pue uoielauab awodul pasealou|| Z0-Z1024SD

uoljeoanpg
(ENE)]
juswAojdw3 pue Buuiel] ‘uonesnp3 ul pue (1OA) wea] BuipusayO YINoA
Iebuy |ned 0 00l 001 ‘(41) seljiwed Bujwliojsuel | - wWeallS S90IAIBG JUSISalopY pue Ajwed| g1-21024SD
IIebuy |ned 0 (14 (14 Buipuny sjooyos eia apiaoidal ybinquip3 Jo &nAa| 01-21024SD
IIebuy |ned 0 0S 0S Buluoissiwwod Aoeoonpy//uonedioiied| 60-21024SD
EIE)
Iebuy |ned 0 (T4 T4 8oIn18s Bumol|oy sjebpng ed1AIes YinoA payoejep |[edoAo 8y} Jo uolonpay | 10-Z1L0Z4SD
aie) [eId20g uaip|iyd
N/A
ipuadsia
SUnIens 0003 0003
SB29.104 1991440 vy | llejaoys pajoadx3 | panbay Buiaeg jo uonduosaqg J9Yy
} w 9|qisuodsay sBuineg | sBuineg : o
uou:._oc_ SLIVL0Z | SHPLOZ
Vi sjusWIWo)

9 XION3ddV

SL-710Z :SSTYD0YUd SONIAVS SAMINVL ? STOOHIS ‘NIVATHI :LNINLIVdIA

Page 42



c6 89. 098 G110z 10} sBuineg Juswpedaq saljiwe @ S|00YdS ‘uaip|iyd |ejoL
jejeg jned 0 0S 0S sdiysiauped pue Buluoissiwwod ur 3sod auo jo uononpay| L1-21024S9
jejeg |ned 0 0S 0S 8}4 | O} Jus|eAinbe uononpas buiyels | L0-21024S9D
SIEQA
ainjny U ainssaud }s09
186619 uans ue o} pesj |Im
Ud1ym anuniuod o} pajoadxa
jou si Buipuny ueis
‘Buipuny Jueib Aq paianod
S yoiym jo awos ‘ainssaid
1509 e Buisnes s| peojased
Jaybiy 0} anp 1s00 pasealou|
A "peonpal alem syebpng eseg| jejleg ined v [44 8.1 002 sjuswaoeld NIS pue Dy uo ainjipuadxe aonpay| 90-21024SO
N/A
ipuadsia
PUNI9AO 0003 0003
sedsalo 1991440 ejuo pajoadx3 | panbay Buiaeg jo uondlose )
} > E| ajqisuodsay OVY | llejyoys sBuineg | sbuineg Ineg j ndi d 9y
_um_us._o:_ SLivioe | Shivioc
Vi sjusWIWo)
9 XIAN3ddV S1-¥10Z :SSTUD0Ud SONIAVS SAITINVL 8 STOOHIS ‘NIVATHI :INIWLYVCIA

Page 43



N/A
ipuadsia
pUN/IBAD 0003 0003

Se2alo 193l40 ejyo R IE]| O] BuiAeg jo uondLiosa )
} > E| ajqisuodsay oVvd | llejoys sBuineg | sbuineg Ineg J nai a 9y
uou:._o:_ SLIvL0Z | Skivioe

Vi sjusWIWo)

9 XIAN3ddV

SL-710Z :SSTYD0YUd SONIAVS SAMINVL ? STOOHIS ‘NIVATHI :LNINLIVdIA

Page 44



¥1 Jo ¢ ebed

ejs pineq 00€ 00¢€ SJ10BJU0D J0ods pue }20|qg Jo asn ay} Buisiwndo 80SVY

‘poliad Ixau 8y} 4o} d|ge|leA. aq ||IM YDIUMm JO S|iejop
dn paxJom Buiaq aie sBuiaes Juswainoold aAleuIL)Y
A ‘panalyoe aq jou |Im sBuiAes siy ] "puads [euolippe
Ul Jinsal [Im ||[eH elpue)| Je aJeo jo uoisinoid o} 3A1S
847 yum pajerjoifiou J0eLu0D Wid}-Loys e Ajleuonippy

"sJal|ddns joeJ}E JOU PIP NG pasiuaApe sem sBuines

9s8y} JoAljap 0} paJinbal JOBIU0D Yiomawely 8y |

umoig ueyjeuop

8z (44 0S (Azeijioiwop) 610SY
suswaoe|d 1509 ybiy/enjea ybiy jo Bulioyuop
"sBUIABS payiuap! 8y} JO %06 B2JIO }SEII0) [[IM M
Apuapnud Y63 €10 Jo sBuines pajoafosd paiuapl
aAeY djep 0} pamalnal sabexoed aseo ay] “sjosfoid

8¢ (44 0S suopisuel] 9L0SVLOD
4

Q

OM) 9S8} Usam}aq uolesadas ou usaq sey aJay | umo.g ueyjeuor

ta)]
001 00¢ 00¢€ saoualoy)g sbesaxoig| YEOSY/ELORY
ol

Ksnegop alne

‘polad }xau 8y} Joj d|qe|leA. 84 [[IM YDIYMm JO S|iejap
dn payJiom Bulaq ase sbBuines Juswainooid aAileUIL) Y
‘panaIyoe aq jou [Im sbuiaes sy “puads |euonippe
Ul }nsal [Im ||leH elpue)J Je 84ed jo uoisinoid Joy ajA1g
347 YiM pajerjolfiau JOBUOD WISK-HOYS € Ajleuoippy
‘sJo||ddns joea31E JOU PIP NG pPasIHaApe sem sBuines

A 958U} JOAI|OP 0} pPaJinbal 10BIUOD YJomawel) 8y |

A Mels pied GS G6¥ 0SS sJa1|ddns Aued paiyy 0} yiidn uonepul %0 L0SY

1eb.ey
SIY} JO JUBWIBABIYOE %06 SWNSSE [|IM am Ajjuspnid
‘abueyo ||Im Sy} UoledIpUI OU S| 818y} abels sy}
je ybBnoyje pue ajep 0} papieme uaaqg arey sylidn oN

31e) [E1908 JNPY

N/A ¢pus 0003 0003

dsiapun/ianQ
192110 0003 | p@joadx3 | paisnbay
isedalod ul siustuuiod a|qisuodsay ovd llejoys | sbuineg | sbBuineg

PSPNIdU v/ Y S0z | suwioz
SLIVLI0Z SSTHUD0Ud SONIAVS ONISNOH ? ALINNININOD -LNINLEVdId

Buineg jo uonduosag 1oy

9 XIAN3ddV




‘pauue|d se paAsIyoe aq a.105018Y) Jouued sbuiaes
asay | ‘passalboid usaq jou sey siy} pue uopejdepe
Joujw spaau Jaremoy Buipjing ay] "siesn g7 Buisixe
Se ||om Sk sjuleg ||V 18 dd yum ajdoad Buioddns Aq
sBuines ases|al 0) padojaasp usaq sey uejd punos v

Kajnepop ainp

‘panaIyoe aq jou ||Im BuiAes siy}
pajedionue aiojaiay) SI | “saliAloe awiy Aep sabuese
0) payse J| sabieyd J1ay) 9seaIdu] Sawoy |efjuapisal

Alleuonippe ‘pasijeroads Alybiy aie saoinles Aep
wej Yyim aAl| }sow ‘saijiunpoddo Aep jeusaixa
Ul SISWO}SNI [enuapisal may aoejd swes) 0d/aT 9yl

8|ieag
-Remey o Apuy

‘paAalyoe aq jou |Im sBuines sy}

awnsse [[Im am Janamoy Ajjuspnid ‘sjqissod assym

sBuines p|aik 0} JnoAeapud Jonamoy ||Im Jabeuew
joefoud sBuines ay | "06/0G Bunnguuod 1 HAID 8y} Jo
uoneloadxa ay) se ||om se ‘sjuswadeld papuny yyesy
900 woly umop ajdoad paddais aney OO uolippe

u| ‘sjuswaoeld Bulalinbal sidoad jo Jaquinu ay}

ul pue sabeyoed aied Ul 8seaJdu| Ue usaq Sey alay |

|enjooyquing
e|wey]

"1obue} siy} Jo Juswansiyoe
%06 dwnsse ||IM am Jaramoy Ajuapnid ‘NGL3F
Jaypny e plalA pjnod smalAal [euolippe Jey pajediolue
SI )| MGp3F eoio si sajep o) sbuines pajosfosd ay |

J99uadg uear

N/A épud
dsiapun/ianQ
}seoalo4 ul
pPapnjoul v/ o

SL-¥L0C

U1 panaiyoe Buiaq jou BuiAes sIy} Ul }Nsal ||Im 90IAI8S
Mau a8y} Jo uonejuswaldwi ayy ul skejeq ‘jeuoiyesado
AjIn} sem 8o1AI8S JudWa|qeay S| MaU By}
20uo 9|qissod sem abieyosip |eydsoy Jaye sabeyoed
s,9|doad Jop|O Ul suoionpal jey) pajedionue sem j|

sjuswuion

slioM Yeses

192130
a|qisuodsay

ovd

¥1 Jo g abed

9¢ 0 9¢ uolsuaixa ajidsay sjules ||y 7LHO
(1]14 0 0se Slswoisno C¢lHO
[BI}UBPISDI WO} S}SOO 81ed Aep aAowaYy
0S 0 0S juswiaoe|d YijeaH [ejusiy ul uoonpay yGOSV
O
4
()
(@)
©
o
9 S 09 sobeyoed 92IA19S MOINDY 9¥OSY
0S (sebesjoed a1e0 -5W00IN0) JUBWS|gEaY SYOSY
0003 0003
0003 | p@joadx3 | paisnbay
Jenioys | sBuimes | sBuies Buineg jo uonduosag 1oy
SLiyLoZ | SL/ivioT




'S9SBaIOUI }S0I G -11.0Z 9Y} JO BWOS JSA0D
[1!™ yolym Buipuny jeuonippe ing ‘sBuiAes e jou s siy |

SIlPM Yyeles

"paABIyo. JOA0 8] ||IM sBuines
siy1 Aj@y1] S]] "pjay usaq ABY SSIOUBDBA J8YJ0 pue
AiBuipioooe pajsnipe sem juswiysi|ge)ss 8y | "8dIAIes
SITIN Pa||spowal 8y} woJy anp sem sBuines siy |

‘JusWBABIYOR JSAO PaljiluspI 8y}
40 %0, 108f01d |1M om Apuspnid i |3 €010 8 |Im Bul|
186png siy} suiebe uinpno ey} jey pejediofue sty

"GL-71L0Z UIYIM paAsIyoe oq jou [im Buines siu}
aJojalay] ‘passalbold si swwelboid ay) se paraiyoe
aq ||Im Buiaes sy} ‘owwelbold ubisepay OSY
8y} Jo Jed se paoinos aq ||IM SAI}eUIS)|E }SOD JBMO|

S|I9M yeleg

alowee|g oy

UBp-paWIYY Jeyey

‘panaiyoe uaaq sey sbuines siy |
‘pajojep usaq sey jsod sJebeuepy BuluoissIWWOY v

UBI-PaIY Teyey

"POABIYOE 8 JOU MOU [[IM
SIY} suorjelsuebio J0joas AJejunjoA snoleA o} sBuipuny
apinoid 0} UoIsI9p B 0} dNQ “GL-710Z Ul Y0E8F BVIIO 0}
#1-€10Z Ul W3 0110 WOJ) PadNpal uaaq aAey Sjuels

UBI-PaILY Teyey

‘paAaIyoe aq jou ||Im Buiaes siy} aioylay | “1osfoid
Sy} 0} 81|24 Os|e 8A0ge §DSY JsuleBe pauino
sabua|eyo sy aioyaiay] ‘puads Aped paiyy Bunoedw
Ajlenuasss ‘siopinold J0j0ss JasjunjoA ybnoiy) sjsoo
Juswaoe|d 8onpal 0} sem Wie 8y "yons se s,y 1S ou
ale aiay) se paweu Ajgjeldoiddeur sem josfoid siy |

UB-pawyy jeyey

A

N/A épud
dsiapun/ianQ
}seoalo4 ul
pPapnjoul v/ o

‘paaIyoe aq jou alojaiay) [im sBuires
osoy ‘sBuiAes uey} 8ouUBpIOAR 1S02, 0} paubie
aJow S| 8wWo2jNo ay} ‘sabexoed a1ed jo Juswdoersp
8]BINOOE BI0W BY} YIM S)sISSE yoiym Buniosyn
IsSnr, JO UoioNpoJjul 8y} YIm pasealoul daey | OJOSVYIN
0} s|eI9jal pue ‘Bj0J dAejUSaASId B SeY |V IS|IYM

sjuswuion

s|eas
-AemonQ Apuy

192130
a|qisuodsay

ovd

¥1 Jo g ebed

0 00S 00S (909) Buipun4 Jusws|qesy [eUOHPPY L¥OSY
0 28¢ 8¢ 80IAJI9S Juswa|geal Jo Buljjapoway YOSY
(o1) €¢ €2 (uewdinba a|dwWis) |9pO [1B19Y S3ADL YOSV
06 0 0S JOBJJUOD S|98YM UO S|ed|\ €GOSV
0 €g €g S1s09 Buyels g yJuswabeuew 250SVY
aonpal g 1sod Juawaebeuew | 91919Q N~
4
86 0 86 alnonJiseljul [}
Ul uononpal -sjuels) 10j09g Alejunjop w
o
(1]+7} 0 0slL uononpal yS -uonesiuebio Alejunjop 9HD
0. 0 0. ABojouyoa] aAnSISSY GLHD
0003 0003
0003 | pajoadx3 | paisinbay
s Sanees || SEnpes Buineg jo uonduosag 19y
17,4914 SLivioc




‘pansIyoe aq |Im Buiaes siy |
‘puadsiapun o} pajoaloid ale syebpng Buiyels ay |

sdijiiyd
alnr % saay Auuspr
Jumolg ueyjeuopr

‘panaiyoe aq [Im Buiaes siy |
‘puadsiapun o} pajoafoid ale s}ebpnq Buiyels ay |

sdiliiyd
alnr % saay Auusap
JumoJg ueyjeuopr

N/A épud
dsiapun/ianQ
}seoalo4 ul

papnjoul v/ o

‘sBuines siyy jo ped anaiyoe djay o} uazoly
s}obpnq Joulw Jay}o pue p|sy usaq SABY SSIOUBJEA

‘Buiaes siy) anaiyoe Ajny 03 Ajljiqe ayy uo pajoedwi sey

|opow juswajgeal mau 8y} Buijuswaldwi ul Aejep ay |

‘panalyoe
aq ||Im sBuiaes sy | saiouedeA 0} enp juadsiapun
Apuauino si 196png Buljels ay| Jueoea sjsod oyoads
204y} Buipjoy Aq pasiyoe aq 0} anp sem sBuiAes sy |

sjuswuion

S|I9M\ yeles

v

13240
a|qisuodsay

ovd

¥1 Jo 2 ebed

00)
4
L
0S 0S JUSWISSASSY @ SS929Y Ul Buiyels ul uoionpay SLHD m\
o
14" 141 S1S090 Bulyels YHD
Ul uonoNpal g S1S00 Juswabeuew aonpay
08¢ 00S douspuadapul Buowoid ZHD
S0l S0l Jojoe- Aoueoep yeis 87DJSY
0003 0003
0003 | pajoadx3 | paisinbay
s Sanees || SEnpes Buineg jo uonduosag 19y
17,4914 SLivioc




¥1 Jo g ebed

Ko|bue ansls

supjdoH Auoyuy

‘puadsiano ue Buiysessloy

Apealje s| wea) se sbuines jJosw 0} ueld uoljoe

UIJWO | SUUOAA

A ue ysi|ge)ss o} pabueuse aq 0} Bunesw Japjoy 1o6png
S||9/M Yeles
‘panalyoe aq [|Im BuiAes siy| ‘paonpal s|eas
uaa(q sey Juawysi|ge)ss jeys Juswabeuew ay | -RemeyQ Apuy
) 6 s|eas
paAaIyoe jou s| sBUIABS SIU} UBBW |[IM 8DIAI9S -Kemeno Apuy
HodsueJ} 9Snoy-ul SU) WOy SPESYISAO0 Ul 9SESIOUI
A Ue pue s}SO9 IXe} Ul 9Sl 8y} Se YoNs SI0jo.) [eusdixg
'SOWIN|OA Jodsuel) 9Npas 0} UdXe)} USa( SABY SUONOY
N/A épud
dsiapun/ianQ suowwon 199130
}sedalo ul ajqisuodsay
papnjau| v/ o

295 S9v'T S1/v10Z 103 sbuines
juawiedaq BuisnoH B Ajlunwwio) |ejo| [e))
26 26 JUBIS) UOIJUDABIH SSOUSSO|OWOH <
BuisnoH Q|
0l 0l puny eIpay w
saueiqi] Pa)
0 9/l "1S00 Bunaylew @ ulwpy ‘Jeis ul uononpal ‘9jeo ==
pue S8SJNO0J |BI0JSWWOD WOU) SWOU| 9SEaIoU|
uoijesnp3 }NPy UOLISN
(000°2) (000°2) €208SY
Juswg|geay * WaisAs
912 91z uoisinold joeuig ul sbuines buiygers|  ZHD/0SOSY
0 9z uodsuel| 8HO
/67OSVY/90SY
0003 0003
0003 pajoadx3 | paiinbay
OVY | nious sBumneg | sBuies Buineg jo uonduosag 19y
SLIvL0Z | SLivLOT




¥L0Z/60/6L " 10WI0) MON G| | SBuines uo ssaiboid Gd - 9 xipuaddy jo Ad0D\G Ly L0Z 1SBNY G poLad\GL-+10208\TLNODANE\INNIAFNGOOHADOVHOTL\H

saLydwnH >ep 0 o o (3s0d Jueoe ) uonepowwoady - Jabeueyy 108(0ld o)
seuydwny e 0 0ol 00l | @seyd - (Juswisaaul paaibe 0} 108lgng) sbuines 148y ABleug 6189
sauydwny e 0 G€ G€ 10B.3U00 B]IGON} JO UOKE|[SOUBD| 4| o
sauydwny ey 0 v v (100BUOQI4 ‘Sl}oB0Id ‘SenudAay uadQp

‘ysy ‘eje dOBJJBWOH ‘siljeie)) sjuswsaiBby MoiosT ||e JO UoNe||9oued| ¢18D

selydwny e 0 S S UEA BUQ JO Uoleea| |89
seuydwny ep 0 9l 9l uonosjold Aed jo noje4 689
salydwnH e 0 oL oL [IouNoY 8y} ssoJoe pealds s18bBpnqg snusAsl Jo Jaquinu e jsuiebe

10Be1U0D sauoydaja] dIqo\ 4o Juswaindoid-a1 ybnoly) SIS0 Jo uoionpay &wo
()

(@))]
seuydwny e 0 ve ve s1abpng anuanay S| JO uonepl|osuo) %wo
seuydwny e 0 62 6¢ S]0BJJUOD 90U

9 9oueualulel ¥ Hoddng Jo uswalnooid ay) Jo abuajieyd pue mainay ¢SO
9Al|9Q 32IAI3S |
siig siydos 0 oL oL uoosjoid Asejes Jo Andx3 | pan
N paunuspl aq o) Buies ajeula)y si|Ig alydosg 0 G ] Buiures ybnoJy) swoosul sjeseusn)| €89
SINoNJISa1 O SUI0oINO buiiemy sij/3 eiydog v 0 0s 0S 51500 Juswabeuew Jo uonesijeuoney| 189
N juswaaoadw| ssauisng
e 0003 0003
el 132110 9|qisuodsd BJloO Pajoadx3 | paiinbay Buineg jo uonduiosa £)
vmvﬂ__u:_ 130 3Iq! d | OV | llesHoys sBuieg | sBuines IAeS J ndi a 9y
i SjusWWo) SLIvL0Z | SLIvI0Z

Gl-¥1 SONIAVS NO SSTHO0Ud - SFIIAYIS F1LVHOdHEOD ‘ININLHVd3d
9 XION3ddV 0




¥L0Z/60/6L " 10WI0) MON G| | SBuines uo ssaiboid Gd - 9 xipuaddy jo Ad0D\G Ly L0Z 1SBNY G poLad\GL-+10208\TLNODANE\INNIAFNGOOHADOVHOTL\H

9leq Ined 0 114 414 uswabuelly uoj08}0id Aed JO INQ ||B4- S82IN0Say Zrso
9leq |ned 0 S8lL 81 syuswabuely Jipny ul 8buey) - s80Inosay L¥So
“saoInosay
se1ddax pineq 0 0c 0c s19BpNg [EUOISIAI 4O UoResieuoney | 0¥SD
4|dday pineq 0 o€ 0¢ MBINDY 80IAI8G Jawolsn) jo 1oedw|| 6£SD
49|dday pineq 0 0¢ 0¢ welboid yoddng aleyop\ MBN pue SliBusg aield A\ JO MBIASY| 8E€SD
SyluUNg uess 0 0c 0¢ awoou| sielyisbay aseasou|| L£SD
—
Lo
N |yiuung uess 0 0¢ 0c 10BJJUOD UOID9)|0D YseD Jo Buuspus) ay| QLSO
(@)
(]
agluuny uess 0 0¢ 0¢ 90O yseD 8s0[D @mwo
S39DIAIaS Jawio}sn)
A pajuswa|dwl pUe payRuSp! suend ined oy 0 oy
uoISIAIp ulylim sbuines ajeulsyy suonouny syuleldwo) pue |O4 8y} ayelba|| ZESH
9JUBUJIASAOY) 9jeiodio)
seLydwnH e 0 002 00¢ Juswaindold Abiaug 62S9
saLydwny e 0 oL V]2 swi.ely JapnJiu| jo (uonjeweblewy) 10enuo) wis] JI9N 8ZS9
seuydwny e 0 6€ 6€ yoesjuo) bBuiues|) ajelodio) jo uonenobaual sy} wouy pasijeas sbuines 9ZS9
SPUN/ISA0 0003 0003
gEESSICS pajoadxg | pasnbay
ui 190130 9lqisuodsay | Ovy | Ilepioys e | e Buineg jo uonduasag 19y
papnjouj i ,
- SjuBWIWOD 19147114 119444114
Sl-71 SONIAVS NO SSTUD0Ud - STIJIAYHAS F1LVHOdHOD ‘LNIJNLHVd3A
9 XIGN3ddV 0




¥L0Z/60/6L " 10WI0) MON G| | SBuines uo ssaiboid Gd - 9 xipuaddy jo Ad0D\G Ly L0Z 1SBNY G poLad\GL-+10208\TLNODANE\INNIAFNGOOHADOVHOTL\H

09 065°L 059°L G1L/¥10Z 10} sBuineg juswyiedaq sadiniag ajelodio) |ejoy

9jood alydos 0 oy oy (1ueoen) 1s0d ssoO diysiosuods pue w4 ‘BuisiueApy 81818

slood sydos 0 29 129 (jueoen) 1s0d JuBlSISSY UIWPY SUOBDIUNWWOY) 8}9|18(

CERINEISRES S k)
suend ined 0 ‘ b 201JJO SJOAB|\ Ul Jels 0] sjuswAed swiuaA0 Ul uoionpay| 9589
SueA3 Ined 0 8l 8l 1s0d 4221} SBOIAISS D1}BIOOWS( BUO JO 32IAISS Jo peaH Aindaq a19l1ed| ¥SSD
90UBUIOAON) 9jel0dio) al
A awooul yliwssoys ueeq 0z ol 0€ IAd ©1 S8|es eIA uolelausb awoou| gy so
Joy saiunioddo Jayuny se [[am se
paunuapl aq o} sbuiaes ayeula)y (=)
yiwsaoys uesqg 0 09 09 sqol juswiyinioal ||e 81e00J-0D) Wc&wo
S92IN0Say uewiny
sauydwny dep 0 Sl Sl

©2z03 - dwooul 8onpoud 0} (Sex0g QOEE X Sjed |eIJawwon - yjuow

Jad deg 0 Ajerewixoidde) Ayjioe4 821A18S 8AIYDIY By} Jo} abieyd e aonpouu|
N payuapl aq o} sbuines ayeulsly LE€SD

Il
dleq Ined 0 002 00¢ wawsabeuely ysen paroidw|- S80IN0SaYy S¥So
9leq Ined 0 002 00¢ UOISIAOId SOUBINSU| JO MBIASY- SB0INOSAY | 4,60
dleq Ined 0 0S 0S 104 Buluue|d ssauisng a}aj9q- $824n0Say £vSo
SRHMESEO 0003 0003
el 1991140 3lqisuodsa ejlo Pajoadx3 | panbay Buiaes jo uonduosa 9
vmv—“___u:_ 130 3Iq! d | OV | llesHoys sBuies | sBuines Ineg J hdi a F |
- SjusWWo) SLIvL0Z | SLIvI0Z

Gl-¥1 SONIAVS NO SSTHO0Ud - SFIIAYIS F1LVHOdHEOD ‘ININLHVd3d
9 XIONIddV 0




ONIONIIIT ® SAVHANVYLS ONIAVYL ‘HLTVIH TVINIWNOYHIANST

Aejui9op sewer I 0 96 96 S92IAI9S SyJed paljje pue spods Jo JuawdojoAsp pue uoles||eldJawwod Jayund| SN
S3JVdSNITYO

Aejuioop sewer 0 09 09 ‘uoilonpal swayos juelb Ajunwwo)| YN

Aejuinop sewe OIS
U9 r 0 oy oy uoljewoysuel} Buimojjoy uoioas sy} uIYIM a)G | AQ S|9A3| Buless Jo mainay| LYN3

NOLY3I JdNLNd
Keuioop sewer 0 0L 0L 196pnqg ABiau3 ul uononpay| 8ZN3I
Keuioopy sawer 0 oL oL "19bpng Buiui] 8y ui uononpay| 2gN3
Kejuioop sewer 0 L L 196png Buiyoyg ayy ui uononpay| 9ZN3I
‘sjobpnq Bunsixa ulym pauiejuod aq ued ainssaud
A sIy} Jey) pajoadxa Ajjuaiino s j1inq Bopioeq siy 0)| Aejuioon sewer 0 8l 8l
pappe sey Jayjeam 9sIoApY ‘pasioud usag aney
1ey} sliedas pajejal abeulelp jo Bopoeq e si alay | 196png Joie ) 90BUNG By} Ul UOIONPaY | GZN3I
Aejui9opy sewer 0 0€ 0€ "1s0d Jeauibug 108loid Jole jo co:o_on_.,wwzm
Aejuioop sewer 0 0S 0S "Jobpng @ouBUB)UIB)\ SPUNOIS) Ul UOIONPaY (YZNT
SAVMHOIH % D133Vl o)
Aejuinop sewer I 0 €L €L "8)Jg JO uononpal tmuw?ozm_
TOYLNOD INIINdOT3AIA ® ONIATING

Aelui9oy sewer 0 14 14 ‘@l]eay | BY|0d O} Sjueis) SUy 810 Jo uononpay| 8EN3
Aejuioop sswer 0 Sl Sl "2ouepInb % 82IApe JO 8|es Ybnoiy) swoou| pesealou|| 9ENI
AeluDo sauwer 0 b H ‘sasealou] Buibieys snouea ybnoiyy swoou| paseasou|| GENI
Aejui9o sewer 0 133 133 "8)§Z'0 J0 uononpal g auy Jess Joj Buibieyosy| £ENI

Aejuioop sewer 0 Sl Si ‘o4usy
ainsja] suoue) je eale saweb asn [nw Jo uone|elsul ybnoiy}y swoou; ssealoul| S0¥3

's8Jjeayl Oy pue exjod

Keluioo|\ sewep 0 62 62 4joq 0} %GLO JO uofjonpal juels) ‘asua) spodsiaiep) 8y} pue |leH Alquessy
UapJOI Je 8WodU| pasealou| ‘s}ebpng saoines B saliddns ul suoonpay| 0¥

FANLTIND B JHNSITT
u,\_w g 0003 0003
m._oo: 19A sjuawwo 199440 ejji0 p3joadx3 | painbay 9
PUN/SA0 } 2 a|qisuodsay ovd liesIous sbuineg | sbuineg S
e SLvL0Z | SLwLoZ
papnpul v/ Yy

SL-¥102 :SSTUO0Ud SONIAVS NOILVHINIOTY '? LNJIWNOJIANT :LNIJNLHVdIA




‘sejol Jejs Bunsixe ayy ulypm
pajjolyed Ajpunnou jou aoueldwod-uou jo seale
puUB S92UBSAR ‘SSBUNDIS JOA0D 0} SO |eUOIHIppE
A Jo JuswAojdwa ay) Aq pajebiiw aq |m Buines II'H uyor oy ok 0s
ay] -juswadlojus woly }sesalo} Ajsnoinaid swooul
10 [9A8] 8y} ajeJsausb o} Ajl@yiun si )i Jey} yons si
JeaA siyy Joy swwelboud uonejuswsaldwi 74D syl (seuoz Bupjied pa|josjuo)) s,ZdD Mau jo jJuswsadiojug| SONI
S3IDIAUTS ONIMYVd
abueyd Aseyun panoidwi ur buinsas Ajjioe) g aseyd Jo sjsod [ejded
SO0} 0RWLIOD 0 05 05 Yy Hun p 1urbun J|ioey) g Ud 40 S}s00 [eyl
UM pajeloosse sajel abueyox3 ublalo ul sjuswanow aARIsod wol) pusplAld| LZN3
SO30}§ dewlo) 0 09 09 [esodsip Joj suonasfoid Juaiind uo paseq [ypue| 0} sbeuuo) Jo uononpay| 0ZNI
$9)0}S SeWlI0D 0 S6¢ g6¢ "SJOBJUOY Y 9SEUd JO uofenobau-ay/uononpay | 6LN3
S8Y0}S dewlo) 0 sel sel
09} a1eb 10e1ju09 (g aseyd) auuo} Jod Buissaooid aysem Jo 1509 ul uononpay| 8LN3
SOY0}S SBUWLOD 0 S9 99 314 G'| Buyjels ui uononpay| ZLNI
NG6EF JO puadsiono 1seoalo)
B Ul s)nsal [|}S SIY} JOASMOH ‘GL/i7L0Z Ul 420913
A 0} 71/€10C UI ¥Z10‘Z3 WOlj 9onpal 0} }SeOI0)( S8X0}S JBUWI0D 0oL 0 0oL
S| alnypuadxa pajejas Aousbe ay) pue OOLF -obesn yejs Aouabe uj uojonpal e ul Bunsal Aaijod ssauyols
Aq paonpai sem 1abpnq auleseq GL/¥71L0Z 94l M3U S,|1ounoY ay} Jo uonejuswa|dwi pue Juswabeuew souewsopad parosdw)| GLNT
.toamh.n_.
SO0} OBLLIOD 0 o8 o8 SJUBJINSUOD Ul SUOIJEPUSWIWIODD] JO JNSal B SE 81njonJis juswsbeuew Jo)vL(HLNI
‘uwnine )
Ales u) pajoadxe s| Jodas 8y ‘jJuswanalyoe ')
awooul pue Ayjiqeysosd anoidwi 0} palinbai c
A uoloe uo podal |eul e JaAlep 0} Buiyeas ‘@oInIes| say0ls oewiIo) 0sz 0 0se 0
ay} Jo mainal ||ny, e Buionpuod ale ejwounyg
"9WOooUI / S}SOD 9)SEM |BIDIaWWO0D aY) asAjeue
0] elwoun3 yym Burspom Ajjuaind si uonoas ay | Bulphoay pue aisep) [elosswwo)| Y3
A Y4 831 cLe sjoenuod diysiauped mau 0} uonejal ul 9sead s}sod [eba| pue Aoueynsuo)
0 1021 1021 auuo} Jad sso201d 9)SEBM JO S}SOD Ul UOIIONPaYy
S9)0]S d2BWI0D 0 65 65 uononpal s3so9 Bujuueld
0 oL oL ‘Juaweaibe dATS Jo Hed se uopng o) sjuswAed uonesusdwos Buisean| Z1LY3
S3IDIAY3S FLSVM
‘uondSs By} UIYIM
jueoeA Ajjualind sjsod wolj }Jow aq 0} pajoadxa
A SI |[esHoys Aue ‘JoAsmoH “1esk [eioueul SIy) Jow [I'H uyor v 0 00k 00k
aq jou Aew Buines %0013 [N 8Y} ‘@1ep Hels pakejap
ay} 0} anQ ‘1snbny js| uo uebaq ao1nIeS paleys ‘sooInBs Alojeinbal paieys puowyory '@ Uous|| 013
.u_\_wn_ 0003 0003
mhoo: IBA sjusaWwo 192140 ejlo pajoadx3 | panbay )
PUN/ISAQ } 2 a|qisuodsay ovd llesious sbuineg | sbuineg Y
e SLivioc SLivioc
papnpul v/

SL-¥102 :SSTUO0Ud SONIAVS NOILVHINIOTY '? LNJIWNOJIANT :LNIJNLHVdIA




Page 55

Sly €98¢ 8€¢ce G1/¥10Z sPuineg uonesauabay pue JuswuoliAug [e}o |
L uUo "92IAI8S B} Jo Aouaidiye asealoul pue sjodsioy uoisabuod
II'H uuor o 0 8y 8y oljel} 9|yoe) 0} JopJo Ul 9oueldwoo-uou JO Seale Uo $924n0sal Jo Buisnoojoy| ZLNI
"}SEJ8I0} UG (seuoz
A Ajsnoinaid ajel ayj je jou 1ng ‘Buiobuo si sy II'H uyor 09 b L Bujed pajjouo)) s,zdD mau ul saulyoew Aeidsiq g Aed jo uonejuswaidw|| yONI
.u_\_wn_ 0003 0003
mhmo: IBA sjusaWwo 192140 ejlo pajoadx3 | panbay )
PUN/ISAQ } 2 a|qisuodsay ovd llesious sbuineg sbuineg Y
e SLivioc SLivioc
papnpul v/

SL-¥102 :SSTUO0Ud SONIAVS NOILVHINIOTY '? LNJIWNOJIANT :LNIJNLHVdIA




APPENDIX 7
The following charts show the forecast year end variance by department with a comparison
for 2012/13 and 2013/14:

Corporate Services

600
400
200

0

(200)

00)
00)

—e—12/13
Variance

—a—13/14
Variance

g 14/15
Variance

&400)
(1,000)
(1,200)
(1,400)
(1,600)

Aen
aunp
Ainpe
Bny
dag
1°0
AON
28Q
uer
ged
yole

Children, Schools and Families

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
00
o
9)00

500

—e—12/13
Variance

—u—13/14
Variance

g 14/15
Variance

0

(500)

(1,000)

Page 56



2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

£'000

(500)

(1,000)

Environment and Regeneration

—e—12/13
Variance

—u— 13/14
Variance

gy 1415
Variance

3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000
Q00
So
o)

(1,000)

(1,500)

(2,000)

(2,500)

Community and Housing

——12/13
Variance

—u— 13/14
Variance

e 14/15
Variance

Page 57




2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

=
o o0

o

L)
(1,000)
(1,500)

(2,000)

unp

ne

Bny

dag
190

AON

Adult Social Care

28(

uep
gs4

e

—e—12/13
Variance

—u—13/14
Variance

s 14/15
Variance

(20)

<
o
<

Libraries & Adult Education

aunp

Anpe

1snbny

Jaquwisydeg
1840}00

FELIEININ

Jaquieoa(g

Aenuer
Atenige-

yoJepn

—e—12/13
Variance

—u—13/14
Variance

e 14/15
Variance

Page 58




Housing General Fund

pLE]

3
o
(]
=

J8q
18q

Ae

—e—12/13
Variance

—u—13/14
Variance

s 14/15
Variance

Page 59




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Financial Monitoring August (2014/15)

